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Chairman’s Statement

RIS

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | present herewith
to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

During the year of 2019, the Group engaged in media and
culture business, trading business as well as entertainment and
gaming business. The Group’s revenue was HK$327,065,000
(2018: HK$73,485,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019,
with a gross profit of approximately HK$231,447,000 (2018:
HK$37,982,000). The Company recorded a profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$98,181,000 (2018:
loss of HK$49,606,000).

Basic earnings per share for the year was approximately 13.37
HK cents (2018: loss per share 7.36 HK cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The management will continue to allocate more resources to
media and culture segment which are the Group’s major growth
drivers.

With an aim to safeguard a higher shareholder’s return, the
Group is in the process of reviewing the future prospect and
development of its other business segments, and at the same
time exploring new business opportunities and making more
efforts to explore market opportunities in Mainland China.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all the employees of the Group
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Deputy Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ISSUE OF BONDS UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 26 April 2019, the Company and each of the three
subscribers (who are independent third parties to the Company)
entered into the subscription agreements (“Subscription
Agreements”), pursuant to which each of the subscribers has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue the unsecured redeemable bonds
(“Bonds”) with conditional conversion rights in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$180,000,000 (“CB Proceeds”).

On 28 April 2019, the CB Proceeds was received by the
Company and the CB Proceeds net of related expenses was
utilized to repay part of the short-term liabilities of the Company.

The details of the Bonds and the CB Proceeds can be referred
to the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2019.

In June 2019, the Bonds at a principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 were fully converted into ordinary shares of the
Company and the total number of ordinary shares of 72,000,000
was issued was by the Company.

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 28 August 2019, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with several subscribers, pursuant to which the
Company would allot and issue, and the subscribers would
subscribe for, an aggregate of 78,000,000 new shares at the
subscription price of HK$2.5 for each subscription share.
The gross proceeds from the subscription are expected to be
HK$195,000,000.

On 12 September 2019, the Company entered into the
Termination Agreement with a subscriber to terminate the
Subscription Agreement in respect of the subscription of
4,000,000 Subscription Shares, and entered into the Second
Subscription Agreement with one of the original subscribers,
pursuant to which the Company will allot and issue, and
this original subscriber would subscribe for, an aggregate
of 4,000,000 Second Subscription Shares at the Second
Subscription Price.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

All the conditions under the relevant Subscription Agreements
and the Second Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and
completion of the Subscription and the Second Subscription
took place on 30 September 2019. A total of 74,000,000
Subscription Shares were allotted and issued by the Company
to the independent Subscribers at the subscription price of
HK$2.50 per Subscription Share pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Subscription Agreements and 4,000,000
Second Subscription Shares were allotted and issued by the
Company to one of the original subscribers at the subscription
price of HK$2.50 per Second Subscription Share pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Second Subscription
Agreement.

Further details should be referred to the Company’s
announcements dated 28 August 2019, 12 September 2019
and 30 September 2019.

The Company has fully utilised the net proceeds of
approximately HK$194,900,000 from the Subscription for
repayment of part of the liabilities and as general working capital
of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

100% of the Group’s equity interest in its wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Starlight Culture Entertainment Limited, was
pledged to secure the bank loan of HK$71,384,000 of the Group
as at 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group’s business has achieved a turnaround with a net
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$98.2
million during this year as revenue from its media and culture
business amount to approximately HK$323.9 million, compared
with approximately HK$55.4 million of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Media and Culture

The Group’s movies and TV drama series products and
investments, projects incubated by film directors and related
prepayments amounted to approximately HK$460 million as at
31 December 2019, and the followings are some highlights:

Media investments and products

Crazy Rich Asians

The movie was invested and released by Warner Bros. Pictures,
co-invested by the Group and directed by director Jon M. Chu
(who has entered into an agreement with the Group), and was
released in August 2018. The film was adapted from a best-
selling novel written by Kevin Kwan under the same title, which
has a solid reader base. The movie stars Constance Wu, Henry
Golding, Michelle Yeoh, and etc. The highly anticipated movie is
the first major film that is not a period piece in Hollywood in two
and a half decades to feature an all ethnically Asian cast. As the
first adapted work of the novel series, there is also expectation
for it to develop into commercially successful film series where
the stories of the two sequels mainly take place in China. To
date, according to box office mojo, its worldwide gross is
US$238,532,921.

Greta

The thriller/crime movie is directed by Neil Jordan who won
the Academy Award for Best Original Screenplay and starring
French actress Isabelle Huppert who has been nominated for
the Academy Award for Best Actress. The international sales of
the movie are undertaken by veteran sales agency Sierra/Affinity.
To date, international sales are anticipated to be US$9.5 million.
The movie premiered at the Toronto International Film Festival in
September 2018 and was released in March 2019.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Midway

The Group arranged the investment in the epic drama movie,
directed by the well-known director Roland Emmerich (who
has entered into an agreement with the Group), produced by
Mark Gordon and starring Woody Harrelson, Mandy Moore
and Luke Evans. It started principal photography in 2018 and
was released on 8 November 2019. The movie is also the first
World War Il film of Roland Emmerich. It is adapted from the true
stories of the Battle of Midway and tells rarely known stories of
war heroes. The total budget is approximately US$100 million. In
terms of distribution, Summit Entertainment, LLC is responsible
for the U.S., Bona Film Group is responsible for the Greater
China area and Accelerate Global Content, LLC is responsible
for overseas sales. The Deadline Magazine has provided
extensive coverage in this regard and the commentary described
the movie as “one of the biggest movies on-sale at Cannes”.
During the pre-sales period, excluding the Greater China area,
overseas pre-sales has exceeded US$30 million.

The movie topped the North American box office only in its
opening week. According to Box Office Mojo, its worldwide
gross amounted to US$125,675,266. In addition, the movie also
enjoyed positive buzz among audiences since releasing, with
being scored by up to 92% of audiences (Audience Score) on
Rotten Tomatoes, a professional film critics website.

Scary Stories to Tell in the Dark

The movie is distributed in US by Lionsgate, co-financed by
CBS Films, eOne, the Group and Rolling Hills and was released
in August 2019. The film is adapted from a bestselling series of
short horror stories, written by Alvin Schwartz under the same
title. It is directed by André Qvredal, produced by Academy
Award Winner Guillermo del Toro, written by Dan Hageman,
Kevin Hageman, and Guillermo del Toro. Starring Zoe Margaret
Colletti, Michael Garza, Gabriel Rush, etc., the movie’s
international distributor is Entertainment One and Sierra/Affinity
is the foreign sales agency of the picture. Produced for US$25
million, the movie earned US$21 million at the domestic box
office in its opening weekend. To date, according to Box Office
Mojo, its worldwide gross is US$105,647,580.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Malignant

The movie is independently co-financed by the Group and Midas
Innovation. The motion picture written by Akela Cooper, based
on a story by James Wan and Ingrid Bisu and to be directed
and produced by James Wan, is the first project to go into
production since the development deal was inked. New Line has
the exclusive right to distribute the picture throughout the world
excluding mainland China but including Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan. The movie is stared by Annabelle Wallis. Currently, it has
finished its production work and is undergoing post production.

Marshall

The movie was obtained by the Group through acquisition.
It is internationally distributed by Sony Pictures Worldwide
Acquisitions Inc., and distributed by Open Road Films, LLC
in North America. The movie is produced by Paula Wagner,
an experienced Hollywood producer, and starring Chadwick
Boseman, the leading actor of “Black Panther”, and Sterling
K. Brown, an Emmy Award winner and the leading actor of
“This Is Us”. The movie was nominated for Oscar Best Original
Song (theme song: Stand Up For Something) and received Top
Ten Films of African American Film Critics Association Awards,
Audience Choice Award of Chicago International Film Festival,
Annual Song Award of Hollywood Film Awards, Best Original
Song Award of Annual Satellite Awards as well as 18 other
internationally renowned awards nominations.

My Robot Boyfriend

My Robot Boyfriend, an urban love sci-fi comedy directed by Lai
Chun Tsang and starring Chao Jiang and Xiaotong Mao, which
has been firstly broadcasted on Zhejiang Satellite TV on 21
October 2019 with concurrently releasing on Tencent Video and
Mango TV.

PROJECTS INCUBATING BY FILM DIRECTORS

With the commitment in further diversifying and enhancing
the entertainment business of the Group so as to broaden the
income sources, the Group has engaged 8 film directors.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

James Wan, Roland Emmerich, Jon M. Chu, Robert Zemeckis,
Alan Taylor, Jonathan Liebesman, F. Gary Gray, Sylvester
Stallone, Nattawut Poonpiriya and Sam Raimi in relation to the
development and production of motion picture projects, which
enable the Group to tap into the business of film production
and distribution. Reference may be made to the Company’s
announcement dated 20 March 2020 for details of the profile of
some of the projects under development. With respect to those
projects that have not been completed prior to the terminations
of the development agreements with Jonathan Liebesman
in November 2019 and Alan Taylor in December 2019, the
Company and those two directors will continue to collaborate on
the development of those projects.

Sale of Film and TV Drama Series

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sale of film and
TV drama series included the net gain of approximately
HK$127,476,000 as revenue from sale of TV drama series. The
Group was entitled to proceeds from sale of certain TV drama
series of approximately HK$446,521,000 (including tax) based
on the sales agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
generated from media and culture business amounted to
approximately HK$323.9 million (2018: HK$55.4 million), with a
gross profit of approximately HK$231.3 million (2018: HK$37.2
million).

Trading of chemical products, and energy
conservation and environmental protection
products

As the management has allocated more resources to media and
culture segment which are the Group’s major growth drivers,
this segment shrank and its revenue and gross profit decreased
to approximately HK$3.1 million and approximately HK$91,000
respectively in the year of 2019 (2018: revenue of HK$17.7
million and gross profit of HK$530,000).

Entertainment and Gaming

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
generated any revenue (2018: revenue of HK$394,000 and
gross profit of HK$290,000) from entertainment and gaming
business. In view of the continued tightened credit control policy
of the Group and the poor results recorded in the previous
reporting periods, the management was in the process of
reviewing the future prospect and development of this segment
as at 31 December 2019.
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EI1R[E575m R 7

As disclosed in “EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD”
below, on 20 February 2020, the board of directors of the
Company decided to cease its business in the entertainment
and gaming segment taken account of, among other factors,
absence of revenue generated for over one year, the minimal
assets kept and the hardship in keeping its operations. As at 31
December 2019, there were no long-term assets or liabilities in
the entertainment and gaming business segment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group reported a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$98,181,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: loss of approximately
HK$49,606,000).

The Board considers that the improvement in the overall
performance of the Group was mainly attributable to the
followings: (i) the increase in gross profit of approximately
HK$193.5 million; and (i) the increase in income tax expenses of
approximately HK$50.6 million.

Basic earnings per share for the year amounted to approximately
18.37 HK cents (2018: loss per share 7.36 HK cents). Net
assets of the Group were approximately HK$309,552,000 (2018:
net liabilities approximately HK$163,352,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

There is no material acquisition and disposal conducted by the
Group during the year that should be notified to the shareholders
of the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s equity attributable
to its owners was approximately HK$356,296,000 (2018:
deficiency of approximately HK$117,290,000).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated cash flow, interest-bearing bank and other borrowing
amount due to a holding company, and through issuance of
promissory notes and convertible bonds.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a stable financial position.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$180,404,000 (2018:
HK$26,907,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio was approximately
1.65 (2018: approximately 0.88) based on current assets of
approximately HK$1,165,656,000 (2018: HK$435,811,000)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$707,212,000 (2018:
HK$494,820,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and business transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Australian
dollars and U.S. dollars which have been relatively stable
during the year. The Group was not exposed to material foreign
exchange risk and has not employed any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group employed 28 (2018: 35) employees as at 31
December 2019. The Group’s remuneration policies are primarily
based on prevailing market salary levels and the performance of
the respective companies and individuals concerned. Employees
may also be invited to participate in the share option scheme of
the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period has been disclosed in
note 43 to financial Statements of page 258 of this report.

Other than disclosed above, there is no major event after the
reporting period that should be notified to the shareholders of
the Company.
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EXEIGIRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
including those revised code provisions which became effective
on 1 April 2012, 1 September 2013, 1 January 2016 and 1
January 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company complied with all applicable provisions of the Code
for their respective applicable periods except for the deviations
stated below:

CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders. Due to other pre-arranged
commitments, three of the independent non-executive directors
and the non-executive director were unable to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 21 June 2019.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business strategic
decisions and performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised eight
Executive Directors, Mr. Fang Jun (Chairman), Mr. Chau Chit
(Deputy Chairman), Mr. Luo Lei (Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Sang Kanggiao, Mr. Gao Qun, Mr. Chen Jie, Ms. Wu Xiaoli and
Mr. Hung Ching Fung; and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Wai Kwan, Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak, Mr.
Ma Runsheng and Mr. Wong Wai Hung.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the
fields of accounting and/or appropriate expertise. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company and the Company considers these directors to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out below:

PXREIBWS

EEE

EXe RS NERARAYERAER XK
SRS J7 & MR -

RAREAH EF@d N \BRTETHERE (=
B) BELRE (BIXE) BELLE (THRER) %
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Ao
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Meetings Attended/Held
HERY/ BHERRY
Anti-money Investment
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Executive Laundering Credit Steering
Directors gz AGM Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
RREEXE B58 EHEEE R4FEE HFMES®  4GEEE REBHEEE  (1HFEE REENZEE
Executive Directors #f7ES
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HiEksE 0/ 912 000
Mr. Chau Chit B 1! 1212 33 1
Ms. Chen Hong (refired on 21 June 2019) Rkt (R=F-NEAR-T-REM) 0/ 67 1 000 000 000
Mr. Luo Lei BERE o 10112 il 0/0
Mr. Li Hatian (resigned on 14 May 2019) FEREE (R-2-NFRATRARA) 01 5/6 00 000 000 000
Mr. Gao Qun RELEE 01 12
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 14 May 2019) FERE(RZF-NERRTRBEER) 1 46 12 112 1 000 000 00
Mr. Chen Jie (appointed on 23 July 2019) BAkE
(R=Z-NEtA-t=HEEH) 00 33
Ms. W Yiaol (appointed on 23 July 2019) EON %Ki
(RZB-NFLAZTZREER) 00 33
Non-executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wang Shoulei IFREE 01 12
Independent Non-executive Directors BukuTEE
Mr. Wong Wai Kwan IEERE 1 12112 W) 33 33 000 00
Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak »@HW% 01 1012 W) 33 33 000
Mr. Kong Chi Mo (resigned on 14 May 2019) gm% -NERRTRAEE) 00 5/6 1n 0/ 00 00
Mr. Hong Tao (resigned on 14 May 2019) v NERATEAEH) 00 46 17 04 00 00
Mr. Ma Runsheng (appointed on 14 May 2019)
Z-WFIATRAREE) i 36 1 112 00 00
Mr. Wong Wai Hung (appointed on 14 May 2019) %
(R=B-NFRATOERER) 01 46 il 2 00 00
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Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the board
of Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of one year or
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting pursuant
to the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves
with legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending seminars or self-reading.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012,
[t comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
currently chaired by Mr. Chau Chit.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board under diversified perspectives set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate.

The Company has formulated the nomination policy, and factors
which would be used as reference by the Nomination Committee
in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for director
include, inter alia, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as Board member, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of
Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish
a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, such as any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this report, members of the Remuneration
Committee included:

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Fang Jun

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Ma Runsheng

Mr. Wong Wai Hung

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in
2019 to discuss remuneration related matters.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of employment contracts of the executive
Directors and appointment letters of the non-executive
Directors with reference to the factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing
terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors and
appointment letters of the non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 70 of this report.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditors are Ernst & Young (the
“Auditors”). The audit committee of the Group (the “Audit
Committee”) is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Auditors have performed audit service and their remuneration in
respect of audit service is HK$966,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. Its principal
duties are to review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems. As
at the date of this report, members of the Audit Committee
included:

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Ma Runsheng

Mr. Wong Wai Hung

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the Auditors on the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019, and is of the opinion that the preparation of
the consolidated results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing terms in
relation to the appointment of the Group’s external auditors are
fair and reasonable.
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ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
COMMITTEE

An Anti-money Laundering Committee was established on 12
February 2015. At the date of this report, members composed
of two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company’s anti-money laundering policy and procedures and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with
the Company’s standard operation procedures for anti-money
laundering and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

An Executive Committee was established on 13 April 2018. At
the date of this report, members composed of six Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for monitoring the day-
to-day operation of the Company and any of the Company’s
subsidiaries (“Subsidiary”) from time to time and should be
reported to the Board.

CREDIT COMMITTEE

A Credit Committee was established on 12 February 2015. At
the date of this report, members composed of two Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing of the
Company’s process and policies on credit approval and recovery
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with the
Company’s standard operation procedures for credit approval
and recovery and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.
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INVESTMENT STEERING COMMITTEE

An Investment Steering Committee was established in June
2010. At the date of this report, members composed of
one Executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for the consideration,
recommendation of potential investment projects. Ad-hoc
meetings will be held when potential projects are identified.
During the meeting, they will review individual project’s position
and action to be taken if necessary, and to recommend to the
board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the Auditors to the shareholders of the
Company are set out on pages 76 to 80 of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
risk management and internal control system and for reviewing
its effectiveness on an annual basis, in respect of controls on
financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.

The risk management and internal control system are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The system
aims to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objectives.
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Main features of the risk management and
internal control system

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group include:

to enhance corporate governance standards;

° to continuously establish and improve the company-wide
and top-down approach risk management and internal
control system;

° to strengthen the Group’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the Main Board Listing Rules
requirements; and

° to address on-going changes and challenges and reduce
uncertainties.

Three-Line defense risk management model

The Group has used a three-line defense risk management
model to identify, assess, mitigate and manage risks. At the
first line of defense, operational departments are responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated with each
business. The management, as the second line of defense, sets
out policies and procedures, defines management structure, and
provide guidance on risk management. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defense is
effective. As the third line of defense, the Audit Committee, with
the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department, ensures
that the first and second lines of defense are effective through
on-going assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks
The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

ldentification

° Identifies risks that may affect the Group’s businesses.

Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
baseline developed by the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Responding

° Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

° Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Monitoring and Reporting

° Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

With the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department for
implementation of risk management framework, management
promptly identifies risks, evaluates the likelihood and impact of
risks, assesses the adequacy of action plans to manage these
risks and monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the actions
plans. A risk register is prepared to summarise the identified key
risks, the assessment of risk and related risk mitigating actions
and tabled for discussion by the Audit Committee, and for
reporting to the Board through the Audit Committee members.
The risk register summary facilitates the Board in reviewing the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, as well the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing risk monitoring and related mitigating internal control
measures.
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Internal Control

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal
audit team. The team plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
The team conducts internal audit reviews on material controls
and compliance with policies and procedures of the Group.
Plans and tools for corrective actions and control improvement
are identified and communicated with operations management
to address any issues or deficiencies identified. The team
monitors the implementation of remediation plans and actions
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
conducted a review of the Group’s system of internal control
to ensure the effective and adequate risk management and
internal control system and convened meetings regularly to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Based on the foregoing, the Group concludes that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system, as
well as resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, is adequate and effective.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Audit Committee also ensures that proper whistleblowing
policy is in place so that employees can report any concerns,
including misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without
fear of recrimination, for a fair and independent investigation
and the appropriate follow-up action. Employees can report
these concerns to either the Group internal audit department
or chairman of the Audit Committee. The identity of the
whistleblower will be treated with the strictest confidence.

In 2019, no incidents of fraud or misconduct were reported
from employees, Shareholders or stakeholders that had a
material effect on the Company’s financial statements or overall
operations.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board ensures the inside information is kept strictly
confidential until the relevant announcement is made. The
Directors are not aware of any significant areas which need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Cheung has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings can send a written request to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company to request a Special General Meeting
(“SGM”).

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F,
118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by
a statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s)
and signed by the shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of
the deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of the written request.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meeting

The procedures for shareholder(s) to put forward proposals at
SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by the shareholder(s) of the Company, addressed to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F., 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for nomination of Directors for
election

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
www.starlightcul.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in general meeting
may from time to time declare dividends in any currency to be
paid to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) and the Board may from time to time pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company, in accordance with the
provision of the memorandum of association and Bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended from time to time) (the “Companies Act”).

In accordance with the applicable requirements of the Bye-
Laws and the Companies Act, the Company shall not declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of profits available for
distribution if:

(@ it would render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(o) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby become less than its liabilities.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of
shares. The Board may further resolve that such dividend be
satisfied wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets
of any kind and in particular of paid up shares, debentures or
warrants to subscribe securities of the Company or any other
company, or in any one or more of such ways, and where any
difficulty arises in regard to the distribution the Board may settle
the same as it thinks expedient.
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In respect of any dividend that the Board or the Company in
general meeting has resolved that such to be paid or declared
on any class of the share capital of the Company, the Board may
further resolve either:

(@)

that such dividend be satisfied wholly or in part in the form
of an allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, provided
that the Shareholders entitled thereto will be entitled to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof if the Board
so determines) in cash in lieu of such allotment; or

that the Shareholders entitled to such dividend shall be
entitled to elect to receive an allotment of shares credited
as fully paid up in lieu of the whole or such part of the
dividend as the Board may think fit.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board, which will take into account, inter alia, the following
factors when considering the payment or declaration of
dividends:

@)

the Group’s actual and expected operations, financial
performance and conditions and liquidity position;

the Shareholder’s interests;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;
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(99 general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have any impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company; and

(h)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will continue to
review the dividend policy and reserve the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend
policy from time to time, and the dividend policy shall in no way
constitute an assurance or a legally binding commitment by
the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend in any particular
amount for any given period.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
significant changes to the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the AGM. The AGM allows the
Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate
website is maintained to disseminate Company announcements
and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically on a timely basis.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company is of the view that sound environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance is important to the
sustainable development of its business and community, and
hence is committed to promoting environmental protection,
social responsibility and effective corporate governance.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Group has engaged the management and
employees across all functions in order to identify relevant ESG
issues and to assess their materiality to the Group’s business as
well as the Company’s stakeholders stipulated below, through
reviewing our operations and internal discussions. Disclosures
relating to the material ESG issues identified have been included
in this ESG Report pursuant to the requirements of Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Guide”).
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IRIG - HEBKREIBHS

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
HnE HASE R A E BERE
Customers — Customer relationship — Face-to-face meetings and on-site
E S - BPHR visits

- Protect the rights of customers — HYEgRELBEMFS

— REE PR
Suppliers — Fair and open procurement — Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment
HER — RFRROERE — R W E A

—  Win-win cooperation — Face-to-face meetings and on-site

— BREE visits

- BYEERNBEMED

General public — Involvement in communities — Organization of community activities
NBAL — HEm2E — ABTRED

— Business compliance

- EBaR

— Environmental protection

awareness
- RREH

The table below shows the ESG issues which were determined
to be material to the Group, together with the aspects on the
ESG Guide to which they relate, based on the assessment
performed by the Group. This ESG Report mainly covers the
policies, initiatives and performance of the Group’s business in
relation to these issues, for the year ended 31 December 2019
(the “Reporting Period”):

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
RIE-HEREBESIMHRE - HERESER

TRINRRBAREETZHEMEE HAKE
MEBERZRE HEREAHE  ERZEFMHE
IEk 2BRR HE@RERESIBH ARR HE
RERRETEREBRE_T-NFTA=1—
BIEFE (IHREME]) BEREREEH I AEEE
BRR fHEk&Ai:

Material ESG issues for the Group

HASKEMEBEAZRE HERELHE

A. Environmental
BB

A1 Emissions

HER)

A2  Use of resources
BERfFEA

A3  The environment and natural resources
RIERRAEIR
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ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
BRIE- -#HEREQESI SRR HEREQET

IR LB REIRHS

Material ESG issues for the Group

HAKEMSEBEAZIRE HERESHE

B.  Social
e

B1  Employment
&%

B2 Health and safety
fEREZ S

B3  Development and training
R REII

B4  Labour standards
BRI

B5  Supply chain management
HrERERE

B6  Product responsibility
Emaft

B7  Anti-corruption
RES

B8 Community investment
HERE

Note: Since the Group is principally engaged in entertainment and
gaming business, trading business and media and culture, no
substantial amounts of packaging materials were used in the
Reporting Period. Therefore, disclosures relating to this aspect, as
set forth in the ESG Guide, is not applicable to the Group and so

has not been made.

Labour practices
BT EH

Workplace health and safety
TESFidREL S

Employee development and training
g B3R &IEI

Anti-child and forced Labour
REIRESIST

Supplier management
HEmER

Product quality

EmEE

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
REGRREERE

Community programs

R A

MieE: ARAKBEIENERERBEER BHEBUR
BEEXER SR RERRAANLEERAERE
ke Bt BRRR e RERIESI ML ER
ZHRBATEANAESE R BB REHRE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on
the environment. The main business of the Group is
entertainment and gaming, media and culture, and trading,
which is not the main cause of environmental pollution.
Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission,
resources used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility
of all corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants
and consumption of resources are minimized and carbon
footprints are reduced. For such purpose, the Group has
identified the following goals to reduce consumption of
resources:

Goals

- Reducing emission of carbon dioxide
- Reducing consumption of resources
- Reducing production of waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance
with the rules and regulations related to environmental
protection and did not identify any violations that were
related to environmental protection and had significant
impact on the Group.

EMISSION

There were mainly two types of greenhouse gases
emissions of the Group during the current fiscal year,
including (but not limited to) direct emission from vehicles,
and indirect emissions from purchased electricity in offices.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s vehicles travelled
490,511 km in total. Total emission of nitrogen oxides
and sulfur dioxide amounted to 36.64 kg and 0.72 kg
respectively. Particle emission amounted to 2.7 kg while
carbon dioxide emission amounted to 115.7 tonnes. The
vehicles were monitored and inspected by the system on a
regular basis to keep them in the best conditions in order
to increase fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road
safety.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

For purchased electricity in offices, the Group encourages
the employees to set the air conditioners at the most
comfortable temperature and switch them off and switch
off lights when it is not necessary so as to reduce emission
of greenhouse gases. The Group has also put notices at
eye-catching areas in the offices to remind our employees
about energy saving in the course of business.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability
by assuming the social responsibility of environmental
protection in the course of business and, on the premise
of minimizing the impact on the environment, creating
unlimited possibilities with limited resources. In this regard,
the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, thus has put forth a number
of initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating
employees about how to fully utilize the resources and
save energy. The Group aims at maximizing the efficiency
of our resources in commercial aspect while eliminating
waste and contributing to the society in social aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in
environmental protection throughout the course of office
administration and daily operation. Apart from adhering to
the principle of recycling and reducing use, the Group is
committed to creating green offices to minimize the impact
on the environment. In light of the nature of the business
of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited.
Power consumed by the Group for the current fiscal year
amounted to 49,644 kWh (1,773 kwh per employee) and
total carbon dioxide emission amounted to 39.2 tonnes,
mainly due to daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of
recycled paper;

Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to
reduce energy consumption;

Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable
level and switching off the air conditioners when not
necessary;

Switching off the air conditioners and lights after
office hour and when they are not in use;

Requiring employees to turn their computers and
other devices to the sleep mode or switch them off
when leaving the office (including visiting clients and
having lunch); and

Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment
(such as air conditioners, computers, lights,
refrigerators and paper shredders) to ensure normal
operation.

As per the business nature of the Group, water
consumption is very limited, mainly daily water
consumption by the employees in offices during business
hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does not
include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged

to the municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce
wastewater, employees of the Group are encouraged to
save water. In the Reporting Period, water consumption

amounted to 1 m3 (0.03 m3 per employee).
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DATA ON GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION

IR LB REIRHS

BERBHERBE

Unit Data

KPI 1.2 & 2.1 A ENIEER1.2%2.1 ==L s iR
Vehicles EE 490,511 km CO2: 115.7 tonnes
490,511 B —&AbHk 115,708

Power consumption A& 49,644 kWh COz2: 39.2 tonnes
49,644F FLIF Za bk - 39.20F

Total BET Total CO2: 154.9 tonnes

48 — AR - 154.918

PRODUCTION OF WASTE

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily
operation of the offices, including daily paper consumption,
office paper waste and food waste made by employees. All
domestic waste is collected and disposed by the property
management office of the office building on a regular basis.

The Group is committed to reduce waste production. The
Group encourages the employees to recycle stationery and
reduce waste with an aim to prevent waste production at
the initial stage. Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital
operation method to centralize all documents and regularly
educates its employees about environmental protection.
For example, the employees are required to print double-
sided and reuse paper printed single-sided in order to save
and reduce the use of paper and other natural resources.
Permission is also required for printing in the offices for
statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper,
so that resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for
disposal of computers and related products such as
printers and toner cartridges. Unused digital products are
transferred or reused while obsolete accessories and used
toner cartridges are collected by third party companies for
recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group
encourages our employees to collect and classify the
waste before disposing so as to reduce the negative
impact on the environment.
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IR~
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B. SOCIAL

B1

B2

Employment
Labour practices

To ensure that the Group is able to operate
according to professional and ethical labour
practices, the Group has developed clear work
processes with robust control mechanisms which
have been clearly communicated to all employees.
Certain policies to govern employees’ affairs such
as payroll, attendance and termination are clearly
set out in staff appointment letters in compliance
with Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. There is
no non-compliance with the relevant labour laws
and regulations in USA, Macau, PRC, Australia and
Kingdom of Cambodia offices that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

The Group also aims to promote the diversity of
workforce, including in terms of age, gender and
nationality, as well as a culture of equal opportunity.
The management regularly reviews the Group’s
remuneration policy in relation to relevant market
standards.

Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Group has established a set of policies which is
focused on maintaining a healthy and safe working
environment, and which includes the following
requirements:

- The facilities operated by employees should
meet safety and health standards; and

- relevant information and training should be
provided to employees in respect of risks to
their health and safety which may arise out of
their work.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R IEBNEIBHS

The Group did not violate any health and safety
laws and regulations of USA, Australia, Kingdom
of Cambodia, PRC, Macau and Hong Kong, where
applicable, during the Reporting Period.

The Group has established a mechanism for
monitoring occupational health and safety, as well
as procedures for dealing with related risks. The
Group engages employees in the determination
of appropriate occupational health and safety
precautionary measures. Accident reporting and
investigation procedures have also been adopted for
the follow-up of any health and safety incidents.

Regular inspections and management review of
health and safety have been performed to ensure the
effectiveness of the policies and measures.

Development and training
Employee development and training

The Group strives to promote the long-term
development of its employees by providing learning
opportunities that broaden their skills and make them
valuable assets to the Group.

Internal training and external seminars are offered
to employees including in the areas of finance,
governance, rules and regulations, supervisory and
managerial skills, as well as various technical training
courses relating to their respective job duties.
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B4

BS

B6

Labour Standards

Anti-child and forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and
forced labour in the Group, and is totally committed
to creating a work environment which respects
human rights.

In addition to having well-established recruitment
processes requiring background checks on
candidates and formalised reporting procedures
to address any exceptions found, the Group also
performs regular reviews and inspections to detect
the existence of any child or forced labour in the
operations.

Supply chain management
Supplier management

The Group interacts with a number of suppliers
for trading businesses. We have established and
implemented supplier management policies and
procedures to manage the risks associated with
our supply chain, including those associated with
environmental, social and governance practices.

Product Responsibility

With the traded products entirely sourced from
suppliers regarding our trading businesses, the
Group has established and implemented product
quality checking policies and procedures to manage
the risks associated with our traded products to
mitigate risk related to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services.

The Group did not violate any related laws and
regulations of USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia,
PRC, Macau and Hong Kong, where applicable,
during the Reporting Period.
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IR LB REIRHS

B7 Anti-corruption

B8

Ant-corruption and anti-money laundering

The Group has in place a number of policies
addressing anti-corruption, such as acceptance
of gifts, and conflicts of interest, which provide
guidance to employees in this area. The Group has
also established policies and procedures to deal with
anti-money laundering in its operations.

In addition, the Group has established prevention
system by setting up communication channels for
faults and anti-corruption reporting. The whistle-
blowing system can handle any breach of laws and
regulations.

Relevant articles on anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering are provided to employees for their study
and reference in order to raise their awareness of the
code of conduct as well as related procedures and
guidelines.

During the Reporting Period, no legal case regarding
corruption was brought against the Group or its
employees. Also, there were no cases of non-
compliance with laws and regulations on anti-money
laundering in USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia,
PRC, Macau and Hong Kong.

Community Investment
Community programs

The Group has been supporting sports and other
charitable activities many years. During the Reporting
Period, the Group arranged several sports activities
to promote health and community involvement.
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General Disclosure
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Information on:
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the policies; and
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compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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The types of emissions and respective emissions
data
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R IEBNEIBHS

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks

oAl 82 45 BB R (KPI) (RE-HEREQRE) REBEHE st

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicable During the course of

A13 FTELXEEREEYMES NEHA business, the Company
did not produce any
chemical or medical—
related hazardous waste.
RRREBEERRTIL
B A R BB R
B ESEREY -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Not applicable During the course of

Ald FTEEXEBREREEMES TiE A business, the Company
did not produce a large
amount of non-hazardous
waste, therefore, it did not
include the data of non-
hazardous waste in the
calculation this time.
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Yl NN N O/ S o
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A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions Emissions
and results achieved BE
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initiatives and results achieved
A16 HILREBEREEEEMN L BEELES
K fE e M AT B A R

EXTLREKERRAT
TE-NEFR



43

Key performance

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIF- IENEBHRS

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 (R S IB R (KPI) (REB -HEREEGRE) HBEM ik
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : &R {ER

General Disclosure Environmental

— MR RE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BREAER (BIERER - KR E AR K B BR -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by

type
A2 RERE S EE R, AEEERESE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
A22 EREKERTE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

results achieved

A2.3 HE it BER (E B s st &I R AT ISR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water

efficiency initiatives and results achieved

A2.4 fEsi SREGE /KR _E AT B R - A R 527 A

K ek ET & M ATR AR

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products
A25 B mTABEMBNESE
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Key performance
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BHEA3  IRIERXAER

General Disclosure Environmental

— MR R

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
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A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them
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Key performance Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 (R S IB R (KPI) (REB -HEREEGRE) HBEM ik

B. Social

B.it &

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : &%
General Disclosure Employment
— AR EE =

Information on:

A EEE  BER
BH IERH R
B TE#E T
b~ R LA KR E Aty
FBREN

S

the policies; and

BER: &

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

b) BEBTFHEHETABERZENEBEZZEROINE
o
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Key performance
indicators (KPls)
A 82 (B SIB R (KPI)

ESG Report

(RE-HEREQRE) REBEHE

IR LB REIRHS

Section containing

disclosures Remarks

st

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : @RHEZE

General Disclosure

—RKE

Information on:

FRRRZE2THEREMREREBERELAEEN

(@)  the policies; and
@ BX: X

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

(o) ETHEHEITABERAZENHEBEZRRINE
¥l o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : 3 & RIEH

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERRAREBITIIEBREN M R RAENEE &
MIEEE) o

Health and safety
fEEEZ S

Development and training

R RE
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RIF- IENEBHRS

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 (R S IB R (KPI) (REB -HEREEGRE) HBEM ik

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : ¥ T %A

General Disclosure Labour standards
— R R & TR

Information on:

BRI LB TS T -

a)

S

(b)

the policies; and
BR R

compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BTHBETABEAZENERERZRMAPINE
#te

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : #tREsEEE

General Disclosure Supply chain management
—MRE HrERE e

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
ERHEENRERESRERBE -
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Key performance
indicators (KPls)
A 82 (B SIB R (KPI)

ESG Report

(RE-HEREQRE) REBEHE

IR LB REIRHS

Section containing
disclosures Remarks

st

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[E®EB6 : EREFE

General Disclosure

—RKE

Information on:
BRMREHERMRENEENRZ S
BB S LA R R

CEEBRENA

S

the policies; and

BER: R

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

b) BEBTFTHEHETABERZENEBEIZERINE
o

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : R&/S

General Disclosure

—RWE

Information on:

BRI LEFERE - B BRFF RO R E

S5

the policies; and
1267 SN
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(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

b) EBTFTHETABERZENEBEZZRRIINE
# o

Product responsibility
EmEE

Product responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption
RES
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Key performance

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures
FAS B IE R (KPI) (RIF-HERELRE) WKWESE

Remarks

st

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #HEiRE

General Disclosure
— B EE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRLMEBE2ERTREEMELRFTEZMBRAE
BEBEEEAREFNZHBUR -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Jun (“Mr. Fang”), aged 47, has been appointed as
an executive Director and chairman of the Board on 14 May
2019. Mr. Fang has many years of experiences working in
the corporate finance and film investment industry. Mr. Fang
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Geography from Hangzhou
University in 1993 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws (specialising
in Economic & Law) from Fudan University in 1997, and is a
holder of a Certificate of Law in China. Since 2012, Mr. Fang has
served as the chairman of Hangzhou Newtiming Television and
Movie Investment Management Company Limited* (#i /N ¥7 &
A RREEERRMH AR AT, acompany established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Mr. Chau Chit (“Mr. Chau”), aged 55, was an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 July 2013. Mr. Chau currently
serves as the chairman of the Hong Kong Jiangyin Trade
Association and the vice president of Federation of HK Jiangsu
Community Organisations Limited. He holds a bachelor degree
in chemistry from Zhejiang University and an EMBA degree
(Executive Master of Business Administration) from Zhejiang
University.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and as
the Chairman of Vision Fame International Holding Limited
(@ company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong (stock code: 1315)) on 22 July 2015 and 23
September 2015 respectively. He was re-designated to Co-
Chairman and appointed as the chief executive officer of Vision
Fame International Holding Limited on 1 March 2017.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Sino Stride Technology (Holdings) Ltd (Stock
Code: 8177). Mr. Chau was appointed an executive director,
the managing director, the chairman of the executive committee
and a member of the investment committee of HNA International
Investment Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 521) in June 2006.
Mr. Chau resigned his positions at HNA International Investment
Holdings Limited with effect from 24 October 2013.

Directors’ Profiles
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SEEME

Mr. Luo Lei (“Mr. Luo”), aged 49, is a television and film
director and producer. He has been in the television and film
industry for over 15 years, and has directed several Chinese
mid— and long-length television series and films, including the
television series & 7EF5 Yt /& HEF (Love in Sunshine®), =&t
(Blossoms of Hibiscus Flowers*), 38—££fF = (Cheng Du Wang
Shi*), S & (Snow Region Eagles®), and the film BESH E2p1
PHEY S (The Story of Panda and Assi*). He also has extensive
working experience in the film and television advertisement
industry.

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (“Mr. Sang”), aged 44, has been
appointed as an executive Director on 20 February 2020. Mr.
Sang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from
Beijing Institute of Technology. Mr. Sang has over 19 years of
experience in the securities investment industry in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Sang also serves as an
executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of
U Banquet Group Holding Limited (B2 ZEEIER AR A F)) ,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 1483).
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Mr. Gao Qun (“Mr. Gao”), aged 50, was an executive
Director on 5 October 2018. Mr. Gao serves as the managing
director for CICFH Investment Management Company Limited
since February 2018, overseeing investment and portfolio
management business in the entertainment and media sector
for the fund. Mr. Gao is also a cofounder and chief executive
officer of Beijing WD Pictures Company Limited* (“‘Beijing WD
Pictures”), an innovative entertainment company engaged in
the development, production, marketing and distribution of
films and television programs. Prior to the founding of Beijing
WD Pictures, Mr. Gao served as the vice president at Shanghai
New Culture Media Group Co., Limited, responsible for the
company’s strategic development, mergers and acquisitions,
and production of films and television programs. Mr. Gao was a
co-executive producer for film “Skiptrace” and a co-producer for
film “Saving Mr. Wu”. Mr. Gao was the executive vice president
at ChinaVision Media Group Limited (“ChinaVision”, now known
as “Alibaba Pictures Group Limited”), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1060), executing ChinaVision’s transactions such as acquisition
of China Entertainment Media Group Limited and strategic
placement to Tencent Inc. Mr. Gao also supervised ChinaVision’s
content investments, including investment in Stephen Chow’s
“Journey to the West”. Mr. Gao obtained a bachelor’s degree in
English Literature from Shanghai International Studies University
in 1991 and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
Yale School of Management in 2004.

Mr. Chen Jie (“Mr. Chen”), aged 40, has been appointed
as an executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee on 23 July 2019. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Accounting from Changchun University of Science and
Technology in 2002 and a Master Degree in Laws from Zhejiang
University in 2005. From 2006 to 2012, Mr. Chen was a partner
of Zhejiang Kaifu Law Firm. Since 2012, Mr. Chen has served as
the chief executive officer of Hangzhou Newtiming Television and
Movie Investment Management Company Limited* (“fu /M #1&
B R ETERMDAER AR, acompany established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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Ms. Wu Xiaoli (“Ms. Wu”), aged 30, has been appointed as an
executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee
on 23 July 2019. Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor Degree in English
from China Jiliang University in 2012. She was the general
manager of /N EEER B AF], a company established in
the PRC, from 2012 to 2017. Since 2017, Ms. Wu has served
as the general manager of MMBEIX/LEIZEBER AR (‘HZ
Bochuang”)

Mr. Hung Ching Fung (“Mr. Hung”), aged 36, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 27 September
2014. Mr. Hung obtained a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Macquarie University in Australia in 2007. Mr. Hung worked as
an auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Grant Thornton from
2007 to 2010. Mr. Hung is a full member of CPA Australia. Mr.
Hung has been the Financial Controller of Jimei Group since
2010 and has been an executive director of Cloud Investment
Holdings Limited (previously known as China Bio Cassava
Holdings Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8129), since August 2013. He was
a non-executive director of Asa Resource Group Plc, a company
whose shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market of
London Stock Exchange Plc. (AIM code: asa.l) from September
2015 to July 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan (“Mr. Wong”), aged 52, obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in 1992 and a master’s degree in business administration
from Washington University in St. Louis, U.S.A. in 2009. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Currently, Mr. Wong is the Chief Financial
Controller of Thinktank Learning Inc., and previously was the
general manager of the financial audit department of Shanghai
Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Fosun International Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00656). Mr. Wong has extensive working experience in the audit
and consulting areas, particularly in initial public offerings, risk
management and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of Shougang Concord
Technology Holdings Limited (now known as HNA Holding
Group Co. Limited), whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00521) and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of that company, for the period from
June 2010 to October 2013.

Mr. Wong was previously appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company from September 2013
to November 2014 and served as a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the investment steering committee of the
Company. He has been an independent non-executive director
of Vision Fame International Holding Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
01315) since July 2015 and is a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of that company.

He has been a non-executive director of Vobile Group Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 03738) since June 21, 2017 and is a
member of the audit committee of that company.
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Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak (“Mr. Ngai”), aged 52, obtained
a master degree from University of Cambridge in 1991. He is
the Chairman of The Red Group Investment Limited and was
previously the Managing Director of UBS Investment Bank. He
has a wealth of experience in the international financial sector.
Mr. Ngai is also a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee
of the People’s Political Consultative Conference, Fellow
Commoner and Development Advisory Council Member of Clare
Hall, University of Cambridge, Council Member and Chairman of
the Institutional Advancement Committee of Lingnan University,
member of the Transport Tribunal Panel, and a member of the
Administrative Appeals Board.

Mr. Ma Runsheng (“Mr. Ma”), aged 63, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 14 May 2019. Mr. Ma
is a first-class director and television producer of China Central
Television under the National Radio and Television Administration
of the PRC. He has extensive experience in the film and
television entertainment industry. In December 1999, Mr. Ma
obtained a Doctorate Degree in Literature (Arts) at the Central
Academy of Drama, and subsequently conducted post-doctoral
research in Chinese language and literature at Beijing Normal
University from September 2002 to January 2005. Mr. Ma
served as a visiting professor at the Central Academy of Drama
from December 2005 to December 2008 and serves as a visiting
professor at Communication University of China since 2006. Mr.
Ma was invited to be an expert judge at various international film
festivals in Guangzhou, Singapore, Malaysia, Korea and Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Wong Wai Hung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 64, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 14 May
2019. Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor Degree in English
from Fudan University in July 1976. He was accredited as a
Senior Economist with a specialty in Economical Management
by the Appraising and Approval Committee of the Ministry of
Communications of the PRC in October 1993. Mr. Wong served
as an assistant to the President and the General Manager of the
Trade Department at China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company.
Mr. Wong was Vice President (Senior Economist) of Beijing
East Linden Science & Technology Co., Ltd.* (It REFE
BRI AR A 7)) from January 2009 to December 2014, and
currently serves as its supervisor. Mr. Wong has over 25 years of
experience in business investment and management.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of Starlight
Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
were involved in the following principal activities:

° media and culture business;

° trading of chemical products, energy conservation and
environmental protection products; and

° entertainment and gaming business.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 81 of
the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group reported a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$98,181,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: loss of approximately
HK$49,606,000).

The Board considers that the improvement in the overall
performance of the Group was mainly attributable to the
followings: (i) the increase in gross profit of approximately
HK$193.5 million; and (ii) the increase in income tax expenses of
approximately HK$50.6 million.

Basic earnings per share for the year amounted to approximately
13.37 HK cents (2018: loss per share 7.36 HK cents). Net
assets of the Group were approximately HK$309,552,000 (2018:
net liabilities approximately HK$163,352,000).
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Key Risks Factors

The following section lists out the key risks and uncertainties
which the Group faces. It is a non-exhaustive list and there
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to the key risks
factors outlined below. Besides, this report does not constitute a
recommendation or advice for anyone to invest in the securities
of the Company and investors are advised to make their own
judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

1. We are subject to the credit risk of contracting parties,
trading customers and gaming patrons.

2. Local taxation may increase and tax liability may increase
for future amendment of tax rules.

3. A weakening in economic and credit market conditions
may adversely affect tourism and the profitability of our
entertainment business.

Future development and important events
after the end of the financial year

Details of events after the reporting period has been disclosed in
note 43 to financial Statements of page 258 of this report.

Looking ahead, the business environment remains very
challenging as downward pressure on economy of the PRC, the
global financial and economic conditions are expected to remain
unstable. Nevertheless, the Group will cautiously review and
adjust the business strategies from time to time, and seek the
best returns to maximise value of the Shareholders.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. We are
aware that, minimizing the consumption of resources and
adoption of best environmental practices in the business
process of the Group to the extent practicable is our underlying
commitment to preserving and improving the environment.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Green initiatives include recycling of used papers,
energy saving and water saving.

The Board is pleased to present you the environmental, social
and governance report (the “ESG Report”) set out on pages
30 to 49 of this report which depicts the performance on the
sustainability of the Group.

Relationship with suppliers, customers,
employees and other stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s medium and long-term goals.
The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and
a formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy
relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the ordinances relating to
disability, gender, family status and racial discrimination, as well
as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its
employees.
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There is no reported case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to the groups’ media and culture,
entertainment and gaming business as well as trading business.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the authorised share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the movement in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 86 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 December
2019 calculated under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$556,778,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$196,230,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the largest one and five largest
customers accounted for 39% and 94% respectively of the
total sales for the year. Purchases from the largest one and five
largest suppliers accounted for 42% and 97% respectively of the
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors of the Company is
interested in any business apart from the Company’s businesses
which compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly
with businesses of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed on 14 May 2019)

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Luo Lei

Executive Directors

Mr. Chau Chit (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (appointed on 20 February 2020)
Mr. Gao Qun

Mr. Chen Jie (appointed on 23 July 2019)

Ms. Wu Xiaoli (appointed on 23 July 2019)

Mr. Hung Ching Fung

Ms. Chen Hong (retired on 21 June 2019)

Mr. Li Haitian (resigned on 14 May 2019)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Shoulei (resigned on 20 February 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak

Mr. Ma Runsheng (appointed on 14 May 2019)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung (appointed on 14 May 2019)
Mr. Kong Chi Mo (resigned on 14 May 2019)

Mr. Hong Tao (resigned on 14 May 2019)

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen Jie, Ms. Wu Xiaoli, Mr. Sang
Kanggiao, Mr. Chau Chit, Mr. Luo Lei, Mr. Gao Qun and Mr.
Hung Ching Fung shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. While Mr. Hung Ching
Fung elected not to offer himself for re-election, the other retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were disclosed
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), or as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in the Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the
Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company (Long positions)
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\

REBREEIE T ZEBR (4

ﬁ\w

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage

shares held of issued

Name of Director personal interests share capital
RAAAERZ HERITREAZ

ESHE TiEREE BMHOE S
Mr. Chau Chit BAE &t 49,693,600 6.03%
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HIE g S 1,500,000 0.18%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors nor the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
(as defined in the Listing Rules) to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year of
2019.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that each Director,
secretary or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective offices.
The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate
insurance to cover potential legal actions against its Directors.

The above provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 1 June 2012
(“Share Option Scheme”). No options have been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than any director and chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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R-B-NF+_A=+—B HRERAEEKE
ZITBRAEMA A TAL (RRAREMEFREIE
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I 336K BB ANRIFE 2 ECMATREEk 2 sk
KRB EBTTHEARARBI RBR 2 SRR

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
. E A A S E84T
MRREE BB 514 FifsEiEReE BABLAE S
(Note 1)
(P5E1)
Timcha Investment Limited ( 5% 814 Beneficial owner (note 2) 220,013,514 (L) 26.71%
B AR DA (“Formerly known
as CICFH Innovation Investment
Limited”) L . N
REIZERBR AT ([AITECICFH ExEAa A (fE2)
Innovation Investment Limited | )
IREE X EERBER AR Interest of corporation controlled 220,013,514 (L) 26.71%
by you (nqte 2)+ 9 R
BTl A B i e (T EE2)
TRBIRFEIZERERER AR Interest of corporation controlled 220,013,514 (L) 26.71%
by you (note 2)$ 9 R
BT Sl e EE R (M)
TR MG EEERR AR Interest of corporation controlled 220,013,514 (L) 26.71%
by you (note 2) - 9 .
AT Sl EE R (FEE2)
Sang Kanggiao Beneficial owner and Person 156,629,500 (L) 19.01%
having a security interest in
__shares (note 3) N
RES oA AR B 7 H
s AL (FEES)
Mega Start Limited Beneficial owner (note 4) 49,693,600 (L) 6.03%
EmBA A (M)
Chau Chit Interest of corporation controlled 49,693,600 (L) 6.03%
by you (note 4)# 9 R
53k BT SR EE RS (FsEd)
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Notes:

(8]

All the shares are long positions.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of
issued shares of the Company of 823,564,799 shares as at 31
December 2019.

The entire issued share capital of Timcha Investment Limited
(“Formerly known as CICFH Innovation Investment Limited”) is
wholly and beneficially owned by ST £B X (LEEFR AR,
which is owned as to 34.97% by LB IRIXAIZEREBR AR
which is wholly and beneficially owned by ;T k& &L 5735 % & & 12
ABR A A]. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, ;T &
EREEEREBRAR, IRBEINKAIZEEEBRAT and /T
Fe RIS & B2 B R A ) are deemed to be interested in all
the shares in which Timcha Investment Limited is interested under
the SFO.

Sang Kanggiao, who later on became a director of the Company
on 20 February 2020, has a security interest in 143,000,000
shares of the Company and is a beneficial owner of 13,629,500
shares of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Mega Start Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Chau Chit. By virtue of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Chau Chit is deemed to be interested
in the 49,693,600 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
and is not aware of any other persons who had an interest
or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2019
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

2015 Convertible Bonds (“Tranche 1
Convertible Bonds”)

On 5 November 2015, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreements with the Subscribers, pursuant to
which the Subscribers have severally and conditionally agreed
to subscribe, and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue, the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$365,000,000, in respect of the issue
and allotment of an aggregate of 73,000,000 Shares to the
Subscribers at the Subscription Price of HK$5 per Subscription
Share.

Among the aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000,
Subscriptions of Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$315,000,000 were completed on
2 December 2015. The net proceeds were approximately
HK$314,700,000. Based on the initial Conversion Price
of HK$5.00 per Conversion Share, a maximum number of
63,000,000 Conversion Shares may fall to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Tranche 1
Convertible Bonds.

Principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of Tranche 1 Convertible
Bonds was redeemed on 2 December 2018 and the due date
for redemption of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds of HK$305,000,000 was extended
till 2 January 2019. Principal amount of HK$50,000,000 of
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds was redeemed on 28 December
2018.

On 2 January 2019, all of the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds were
redeemed.

During the year of 2019, none of the Tranche 1 Convertible
Bonds was converted into shares of the Company.
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2019 Convertible Bonds (“Tranche 2
Convertible Bonds”)

On 26 April 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with three independent investors (“bondholders”)
to issue the 3-year Coupon Convertible Bonds (the “Tranche
2 Convertible Bonds”) with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 at an 8% annually compounded interest rate,
which should be payable on the maturity date. The subscription
was completed on 26 April 2019. The consideration of the
Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds was used to settle the promissory
notes.

The Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds were convertible at the option
of the bondholders at any time after the date of issuance up
to and including the date which was five business days prior
to the maturity date of 25 April 2022, into new shares of the
Company at a price of HK$2.50 per share, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments.

In June 2019, the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds at a principal
amount of HK$180,000,000 were fully converted into ordinary
shares of the Company and the total number of ordinary shares
of 72,000,000 was issued was by the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights as at
31 December 2019 and there has been no exercise of any
convertible securities, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into for the year are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, upon considering the Group'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is a
sufficient public float of the issued share capital of the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interests of shareholders. A report on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out on
pages 15 to 29 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chau Chit
Deputy Chairman
Hong Kong

14 May 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Starlight Culture Entertainment
Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 258,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audiitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

FASE X EIA:

Independent Auditor’s Report
BN %S EhH &

FREZEIE &)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BT IR RARESFH

Impairment of film and TV drama series
investments and products

HREFBRERERBRBE

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
film and TV drama series investments and products
of the Group, net of impairment, amounted to
HK$259,719,000. An impairment test is performed
when an event or change in circumstance indicates
that the carrying amount of unamortised film and TV
drama series investments and products may exceed
their recoverable amounts.
RZZB-NE+A=+—H  EBEXKEHETRER
U&E&ﬁ&m%ﬁ@&Z%ﬁﬁﬁ%&m&mwﬁ
Lo BEMHHIE “@@m*%%%%&%ﬁ%&ﬁ
K A Gm ) BR T (B 6B 38 HL AT Y [0 & FE AR EE T TORUEDRI B »

Management reviews film and TV drama series
investments and products regularly to reassess the
estimated recoverable amounts with reference to the
marketability of each film and TV drama series and
current market condition. The recoverable amount
is calculated based on the value-in-use calculation
which uses the present value of the expected future
cash flows.
ERETHENEZRERERERERAZRE
BEEMEEERE TR EN T AN ES5E -
TW@%%&@%F@(E%%E%%XEémgW
REFE)FE

Qur audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment included:

BFIBURERFERITHEZEFBRE:

- Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, which include budgeted
box office revenue, revenue from licensing of the
distribution rights over film and TV drama series,
revenue from other sources and distribution expenses
by comparing them with the future business plan and
the historical cashflows incurred in relation to the films
and TV drama series;

- BBERAREBAERANESTLBEBMEENESL
RenBETEE TEAXHFUERReRERANR
“"“¢@%ﬁ#m%%¥‘§ﬁ3%&%ﬁﬂ E1THE
By las - A 2ORE W R o

S Assessing the discount rate used in the discounted
cash flow models with the assistance of our valuation
specialists by checking market data and certain film
specific parameters;

- TEREZERNBHT BARETSHEBEERETEY
BEMN2Y THURRERESEAMERMARE:

- Performing the sensitivity analysis on the inputs used in
the calculation of the value-in-use; and

- HHEEAEERAOSARRETREES T R

- Assessing the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

PAREZEE:

FREZEIE &)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RO EH AR RARESFH

Impairment of film and TV drama series
investments and products (continued)

EXMRERBRERERBAE (&)

In 2019, the management performed impairment
tests and a reversal of impairment loss on a film
investment of HK$10,356,000 was recognised
during the year. We focused on this area because
the cash flow projections require management’s
judgements which were based on significant
assumptions and estimations.

R-ZZE-NF BREEBETREIAKMRERR
& R A 5185 2110,356,00078 7T © F M2 24 4
AREBEDEReRERAFTEETEEBENERXR
R’ B A 5t H Il

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

HERBEENGRAMBHRERM E2.4 - 3%21 »
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueq)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuec)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuec)

BHERERGSHBRRARRLZ

S 2

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuec)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 May 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit Or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—T-hE A=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B % FTHET FAT
REVENUE & 5 327,065 73,485
Cost of sales 55 P AR (95,618) (35,503)
Gross profit EH 231,447 37,982
Other income and gains E AU A R Y2k 5 12,673 23,631
Selling and distribution expenses ~ $4%& K& 7 $45 2 (5,966) (8,148)
Administrative expenses TBAX (42,463) (53,909)
Reversal of impairment loss/ BB REZEMRE
(impairment loss) on film EiEER CRERE)
investments and film products 10,356 (27,374)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of TRMEAHNEE CREESE)
impairment losses on financial SRERBERE  FE
and contract assets, net (3,569) 1,827
Impairment loss on property, W BELEEREESSR
plant and equipment - (707)
Impairment loss on goodwill EREEE = (54,827)
Impairment loss on EYENRERESE
film prepayments - (1,921)
Change in fair value of MTEeMBEATFEED
derivative financial liabilities (15,144) 36,153
Change in fair value of AmRESFATFEZS
convertible bonds (548) -
Change in fair value of financial BRAFEFABZRZ
assets at fair value through CREENTEE
profit or loss - (797)
Change in fair value of EHRBBRNTEE
a promissory note - 91,431
Change in fair value of contingent ~ JEfTsi AR B R FEEZH)
consideration payable - 1,563
Other expenses HEmAx (14) (722)
Finance costs A& AR 7 (38,675) (99,700)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREL AR F, (&E) 6 148,097 (55,518)
Income tax expense RS X 10 (50,603) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR fEMiiFl  (E518) 97,494 (65,518)

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited

Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Profit Or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE —TE—WFE+-_A=+—BItEE

2019 2018
—E-h=E —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Attributable to: AR AT FEfL
Owners of the parent S REER A 98,181 (49,606)
Non-controlling interests IR S (687) (5,912)
97,494 (55,518)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B ABLEKRERFTA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE{EEREF, (EE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted EXREE
— For profit/(loss) for the year —FRmEF, (EE) HK13.37 centsi#fll  HK (7.36) centsifll

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HLFE

83

2019 2018
—ET-N0E —NFE
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHE T
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR fEM&itiFl ~ (E518) 97,494 (55,518
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hih2mE
INCOME
Other comprehensive income that HE&ZHRIAeEFTOEE
may be reclassified to profit or = Engrd Ryl gy
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: W ZHE
Exchange differences on translation 3 i&/& N EEE £ 2
of foreign operations E X ZE%E (138) (877)
Reclassification adjustments fora FREHEGINER 2
foreign operation disposed of B EAE
during the year = 2,194
(138) 1,317
Net other comprehensive BB eEH o EE
(loss)/income that may be BamH b2 mE
reclassified to profit or loss in F (BB =
subsequent periods (138) 1,317
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FRhEMBEE (BHE) Wi
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR (Bi1&)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (138) 1,317
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FhE2EkE  (§518) 88
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR 97,356 (54,201)
Attributable to: D/(T}\il?‘éff 1
Owners of the parent UNSIEZ TN 98,038 (48,300)
Non-controlling interests ?H HR 25 (682) (5,901)
97,356 (54,201)

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2019 — =&

#n G BTSN &

SlEE = == E

2019 2018
“E—-hE —T—N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B &E FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% Wz kEE 13 1,743 10,322
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 6,062 =
Club debenture gRES 14 320 320
Deferred tax assets REHIBEEE 16 802 =
Goodwill [EES 17 - =
Total non-current assets IERBBEERLE 8,927 10,642
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables B 5 rW IR 18 257,963 698
Prepayments, other receivables TR FOE - AL YA &
and other assets B &EE 19 322,817 248,181
Contract assets GHEE 20 144,753 54,850
Film and TV drama series B NERBERIRER
investments and products EG 21 259,719 105,175
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeEEEE 22 180,404 26,907
Total current assets MBEERE 1,165,656 435,811
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables 2 S EMNFRIE 23 3,162 3,219
Other payables and accruals E MR RIB R ERTE A 24 149,625 26,077
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 71,936 1,290
Amounts due to non-controlling FE T B B A Rl FE I AR
shareholders of subsidiaries &S 26 20,900 20,900
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEE
other borrowings 27 211,827 158,687
Derivative financial liabilities PTEERMEaE 27,29 15,144 -
Amount due to a holding company  J& < i% A 51 3018 38 175,652
Promissory notes A EE 28 9,000 17,000
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 - 266,821
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 2,241 =
Tax payable e F IE 47,725 826
Total current liabilities HENEEEE 707,212 494,820
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEEFHE (BFEFHE)
(LIABILITIES) 458,444 (59,009)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBDAERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 467,371 (48,367)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wn 8 BT AR &

31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—T-NE —ZE-)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMEER
other borrowings 27 149,874 113,433
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 4,071 -
Deferred tax liabilities REHMIBEE 16 3,874 -
Other payables H b fE 1< 3R I8 24 - 1,552
Total non-current liabilities knBHEEER 157,819 114,985
Net assets/(liabilities) BEFHE(BFEFH) 309,552 (163,352)
EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY IN i (EEB)
ASSETS)
Equity attributable to BATIHA AELERS
owners of the parent
Share capital fig A 30 82,356 67,356
Reserves & 33 273,940 (184,646)
356,296 (117,290)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (46,744) (46,062)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) ##% ~ (EEE4) #38 309,552 (163,352)

Chau Chit
AE
Director

EF

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019

Hung Ching Fung
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

||'7.|' ol T

Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE—=

BE%

—hE+-HA=+—BLEFE

Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ - NF+ZA=1T—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATBAAEL
Capital Statutory Non-
Share Share  redemption reserve Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* fund* reserves* losses* Total interests equity
AXHE
kF  RbyEE* i EELRE ERfiE  RiER it FERER BRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TER TER TER Thx TR TAL ThL
(note 30) (note 33) (note 33)
(fi3+30) (#i7t33) (fi7t33)
At 1 January 2019 R-B-h&E-F-A 67,356 196,230 1564 = (4,278) (378,162) (117,290) (46,062) (163,352)
Profit/loss)for the year FRER/ (B]) - - - - - 98,181 08,181 687) 97,494
Other comprehensive FREMLRERS:
income for the year:
Exchange differences on BRESNERELZERER
translation of foreign operations - - - - (143) - (143) 5 (138)
Total comprehensive rEERERE/ (B8) 28
income/(loss) for the year - - - - (143) 98,181 98,038 (682) 97,356
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BB EE T RHAEE - - - 5,000 = (5,000) S = =
Issue of shares upon conversion of MBI R EHEETR
convertible bonds 7,200 173,348 - - - - 180,548 - 180,548
Issue of shares upon share RRPRERZTRN
subscription 7,800 187,200 - - - - 195,000 - 195,000
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=A=1-8 82,356 556,778 1,564 5,000 (4,421) (284,981) 356,296 (46,744) 309,552
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * hEFERBRBREAMBERARTNEEREEBE

of a credit balance of HK$273,940,000 (2018: debit balance
of HK$184,646,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

184,646,000 7T ) °

45 $273,940,0008 T (=&

—NF: BT ER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROIEMEER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE —_E—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T-N\F+-A=t+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATHAAEL
Capital  Investment  Convertible Non- Total
Share Share  redemption  revaluation bonds Exchange Accumulated controlling  deficiency
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserves* losses* Total interests in assets
AXED REEH THRRES AEBY
kx  RinE 1M 1M B ERfE RiER A FERER a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti#r Tin Tin T Fi#n Tin T T Tin
(note 30) (note 33)
([f3+30) (FiF£33)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+E+=A=1-H 67,356 196,230 1,664 1,804 - (5,584) (330,360) (68,990) (41,455) (110,445)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 FRRBHBRELENR
N - - - (1,804) - - 1,804 - - -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-N&-A-H
(E&71) 67,356 196,230 1,564 S S (5,584 (328,556) (68.990) (41455 (110,445)
Loss for the year EREE = = 5 5 = = (49,606) (49,606) (6,912 (55,518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for AR 2E NS/ (BE) :
the year:
Exchange differences on translation of  EE SN EBELERER
foreign operations - - - - - (888) - (888) 1 877)
Reclassification adjustments for a RERLEZ—BEIHEER
foreign operation disposed of ENNERE
during the year - - - - - 2,194 - 2,194 - 2,194
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEE2EKE/
for the year (EE)eE S > o S S 1,306 (49,606) (48,300) (5,901) (54,201)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - - - - - 1,294 1,294
At 31 December 2018 W-Z-N\E+-B=+-H 67,356 196,230 1,564 S S 4218 (378162 (117,290) (46062 (163352

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NFE+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—g-ns —E\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM BEBEBZHALRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATE R (&) 148,097 (55,518)
Adjustments for: - AVIESEE S
Finance costs A& KA 7 38,675 99,700
Interest income FEHA 5 (36) (24)
Gain on waiver of interest e F B 2 WS 5 (7,005) -
Gain on derecognition of a R ERIZE AR AT E R
promissory note measured at AR ERE IS
amortised cost 5,28 - (5,377)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEIE 6,36 14 722
Fair value losses/(gains), net: N EEE (W) F8:
Financial assets at fair value AT EFAEBEZ
through profit or loss SREE 6 = 797
Derivative financial liabilities TELRBE 6 15,144 (36,153)
Convertible bonds R E A 6 548 -
Promissory note A E R 6 - (91,431)
Contingent consideration FES s ARREB
payable 6 - (1,563)
Depreciation of property, ME-BENL
plant and equipment RETE 6,13 1,213 1,397
Depreciation of right-of- FREEETE
use assets 6,15 2,608 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 6,17 - 54,827
Impairment of property, Y BB KRR ERE
plant and equipment 6,13 - 707
(Reversal of impairment)/ B RAREZIED
impairment of film investments CREEE) RE
and film products 6,21 (10,356) 27,374
Impairment of film prepayments BB RIERE 6,19 = 1,921
Impairment losses/(reversal of SREANEERBEER,
impairment losses) of financial CREaEERLE)  F8
and contract assets, net 6 3,569 (1,827)
192,471 (4,448)
Increase in film and TV B NERBKRE R
drama series investments VE G5 32 0
and products (128,988) (115,531)
(Increase)/decrease in B 5 GRIE (8m)
trade receivables VA (259,871) 5,352
Increase in prepayments, other FEfFIE i EWERIE N
receivables and other assets Hi&EEZ (89,482) (100,378)
(Decrease)/increase in BoEMNZE CRLY)
trade payables =0 (57) 338
Increase/(decrease) in other H o fE 3008 &
payables and accruals FEEt B RIE M, CFd) 123,548 (8,244)
Increase in contract assets SHEEEN (90,866) (565,404)
Increase in contract liabilities SXAaEEN 70,646 1,290

EXTLREKERRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2019 HE T —NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—T-NE —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FH#R THT
Cash used in operations AREEEEZIRE (182,599) (277,025)
Tax paid SRNEE - -
Net cash flows used in AREEEHZIHSRE R
operating activities (182,599) (277,025)
CASH FLOWS FROM BEEBZHER=E
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE MENLEEER
plant and equipment 13 (1,191) (1,293)
Disposal of financial assets at fair ~ HEHE AN FEEFAEBZRZ
value through profit or loss LHMEE = 8,516
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A A 36 8,300 109
Interest received SRS 36 24
Net cash flows from KREREEBRLRETEHE
investing activities 7,145 7,356
CASH FLOWS FROM RIEEBZEASRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of KEBRITAHRESD
convertible bonds e | 180,000 =
Proceeds from issue of shares REBITRGOBTEFIE 131,710 =
Increase in amounts due to a FE A — MR A &) 2 FRIEE AN
holding company 472,229 -
Repayment of amounts due to a EEREMN—EIERATZH
holding company (296,577) -
Repayment of convertible bonds EErBEES - (43,000)
Repayment of promissory notes BEANZERE (257,998) -
New bank loans and HRTERNHEMES
other borrowings 164,197 272,120
Repayment of bank loans and EBETEZLEMES
other borrowings (29,776) (12,799)
Principal portion of lease payments #H &~ AHY AR & ZF 5 15 (2,358) -
Interest paid BAFE (30,763) (15,285)
Net cash flows from MEERZIRERETFHE
financing activities 330,664 201,036
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE—=

—NFE+-A=+—BHILHFE

2019 2018
—E-h%E — )\
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTET T T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) e RINSLEER M~
IN CASH AND CASH GRY)BE
EQUIVALENTS 155,210 (68,633)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYZEL2ERRS%E(EHIER
beginning of year 26,907 96,647
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EZEEFRYRE B0
changes, net (1,713) (1,107)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £k >4 RIS ZEIEH
AT END OF YEAR 180,404 26,907
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES ReERFEFEHEBLEHRIH
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as RUBRARERERER
stated in the statement of 2R LIRS FMEIEE
financial position and
statement of cash flows 22 180,404 26,907

EXLREREARAT

—E-NEFR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is Room 1203,
12/F, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

During the year, the company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

o media and culture business;

o trading of chemical products, energy conservation
and environmental protection products; and

° entertainment and gaming business.

In the opinion of the directors, the single largest
shareholder of the Company is Timcha Investment Limited
(formerly known as: CICFH Innovation Investment Limited)
(“Timcha”). As of 31 December 2019, Timcha is wholly
owned by I E2EX{tEFHEBR AT (Jiangyin Starlight
Communications Co., Ltd.*), which is in turn owned as to
33.18% by N RADEE IR BB R A A (Hangzhou
Xindingming Enterprise Management Consultancy Co.,
Ltd.*) and 17.87% by MMBAI XL A ZHR A A
(Hangzhou Bochuang Culture Creativity Co., Ltd.*). In the
opinion of the directors, as of 31 December 2019, the
Company has no controlling shareholder.

The English names of the entities registered in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) represent the best efforts
made by the management of the Company to translate their
Chinese names as these entities do not have official English

names.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Timcha Investment Limited (#i%& % : CICFH
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CORPORATE AND GROUP

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

ATIREEEH 2

Lol PNCIE=

ARAFZETEMBARFHBET

follows:
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/
registration and registered Percentage of Equity
Name business share capital attributable to the company Principal activities
MBI B R ERTHERRE
2z EEHE Vg3t EEFATRETHIL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# GifE3
Surin Development Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 Ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
HERUEE LBRIZT RERR
Zhejiang Sino Green Energy PRC/ Mainland China RMB20,000,000 S 100%  Trading in energy
Technology Company conservation products
Limited*
WL BB RIE R RE /R E R A K #20,000,0007 BERMREM
BRAR"
Star Media International Republic of Seychelles US$1 Ordinary share - 100% Film investment
Limited
EERLNE LBRIZT EYRA
Starlight Legend Investment Republic of Seychelles US$1 Ordinary share 100% S Investment holding
Limited
EERLNE LBRIZT RERR
Starlight Media Inc. United States of America US$1,000,000 Ordinary share S 100% Media and movie operation

FHEARE

3 M%1,000,000% T

BHEREZER

EXTLREKERRAT

TE-NEFR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (continued)

AT REEEHE »)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEBARER (&)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/
registration and registered Percentage of Equity
Name business share capital attributable to the company Principal activities
ML B R ERfTLERRE
£ e 3k /EMEER A AT RET 2L TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
Marshall Holding, LLC United States of America US$7,138,000 Ordinary share S 51%  Investment holding
ZHBARE &3 AR7,138,000% T REZK
Marshall Film, LLC United States of America US$8,413,867 Ordinary share - 46.15%  Media and movie operation
ZHBARE & iBAR8,413,867% T EEREYER
Marshall Movie, Inc. United States of America US$20,000 Ordinary share - 46.15%  Media and movie operation
ENBERE % A%20,000% 7T EEREYER
Starry Ample Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100% Film Investment
EREAHES E EYRE
Beautiful Asia Ltd. British Virgin Islands USS$1 S 100%  Trading and investment
EREAHES E BHNRKRE
IREZLEEFR AR PRC/ Mainland China HK$100,000,000 = 100%  Media and movie operation
HE /BN 100,000,000 7 BEREYER
Starlight Culture United States of America ~ US$1,000 = 100%  Media and movie operation
Entertainment Limited™**
ZHBARE 1,000% 7T EEREYER
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia  British Virgin Islands US$10,000 Ordinary share S 51%  Provision of gaming
Development Limited promotion activities
EREAHES L#A%10,000% 7T REBYEREED

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continuead)

*

Zhejiang Sino Green Energy Technology Company Limited
is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
PRC law.

o IREEXEEEER AR is registered as a wholly-
foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Limited was established on
16 January 2019 in United States of America.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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ATIREEEH 2

M AR EFE (&)
* TR B LR REIRIERIR G R A G B IEH BEE
A AIINEBERE-

v TREEXLEEARAARET EEEER
BEEARE

**  Starlight Culture Entertainment Limitedid ==
—hWE-—RATR"BREMNBEREKL -

ERINTREERB/EIBREAFEREANBEK
AEBEEFEZEEZERONARABME R
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA?”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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21 REEE »)

mERBEXE (2)
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RERBOUEN RN AIARERFEERE
BHEAHREHSNENSEERE—HEBE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and
HKAS 28, and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the
impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@) HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, (IFRIC)-Int

4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method,
the standard has been applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 22 Bt BREES RIKE &)

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea) @ &)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
The Group has lease contracts for various items of
buildings. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases, except for two elective exemptions
for leases of low-value assets (elected on a lease-
by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class
of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1
January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation of
the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 22 Bt BREES RIKE &)

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea) (@ &)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-
use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

ZHEE (7

BERE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 22 SR BREBHRIWE o)

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea) @ &)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified ERAMA - RETERBELEHE
as operating leases (continued) Z2HE (&)
Impacts on transition (continued) BERE(£)
The Group has used the following elective practical KEER_Z-—NE-—A—BERER
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January RS ERFEI6HRHEFERUT AR
2019: BUNERER L
e Applying the short-term lease exemptions to e HRHEHIBYIFERZBRB12(EA

leases with a lease term that ends within 12 NEIEWHEEERAEHAER

months from the date of initial application

e Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of e RITE-NF-—H—HAZtEHEESA
leases with reasonably similar characteristics BER - HRAEESEEEMUSENHE
when measuring the lease liabilities at 1 EHGEAE —BIRE.

January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea)

Financial impacts at 1 January 2019

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16

at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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22 FErBRESRIEE 2

@ &)
REZFB-NF-—A—HHWHBZE

RZF-NF—A—BRATEHER
SEAF1REEZFEWT

Increase
¥ hn
HK$’'000
FATT
Assets =13
Increase in right-of-use assets FRAEEEEM 7,979
Increase in total assets B EBEEN 7,979
Liabilities BfE
Increase in lease liabilities HE B BN 7,979
Increase in total liabilities FES=R eyl 7,979
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(@) (continuea)

Financial impacts at 1 January 2019
(continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled
to the operating lease commitments as at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

22 BT HRBERIEE =

(a)

(%)

REFB-NF—A—HHHES
&#)
RZF-NF-A-—BNBEEREARAR
—E-N\FE+ A=+ -HHKEHE
APE BRI :

HK$’000
T T
Operating lease commitments as at R-ZB—-N\E+=A=+—8BH
31 December 2018 EEHERE 11,339
Less: Commitments relating to short-term B B ERE B R R R BN
leases and those leases with a —E-NF+ZRA=+—H=x
remaining lease term ended on or BIIEBY AR E A B Ay I
before 31 December 2019 1,207
10,132
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as % =ZF— 1% — A — BAINEEFH
at 1 January 2019 PEEME 6%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 NR-F—-hLE—A—BHHEAE 7,979

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 22 Bt BREES RIKE &)

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b) HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for (b) &% (EBEMBEREREZES) —RE

income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the
interpretation, the Group considered whether it
has any uncertain tax positions arising from the
determination of unused tax losses. Accordingly,
the interpretation did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

FEREARERE S N ERT LG
BHF125R AT HEE M GBI [ T
EBBEAMR ) B AAEH (BT REE) &
BFtRETE R BY NEARNEES®
FHERIFE 125 BE AN TR - L
HENAEEF R T EERERENMNE
KEEEIERRMRE - xR ARMANT
=R (\ERSEERZ BN HEEHIER
B (EREHEHEANSIRRIEREM
TEBVRRER ¢+ (i) B §8 L0 {a] 7 E & AR A4 M) 3
HEER HE APATHEEBR KB
ARBEREHRE: R(VERIFAZEES
ERBRE( - REAZRER A5E
ZEEREFERBEEADARARE
R B A O A o] A B SE RO RIS AR » Bt
ZaBYESASEMBRRLRRE
EERIRE-

i

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER

106



107

Notes to Financial Statements
871 15 ¥R R Bid 5

31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venturé®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continuec)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continueq)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continueq)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continueq)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

Level 2 -

Level 3 S

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and non-current
assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continueq)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related

or

parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non—current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continuea)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used or useful life for this purpose
are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Office equipment 25%
Land and building 2.5%
Motor vehicles 30%

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 50%

Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:
Buildings 2 — 8 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continueq)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24 FESTETBEREIE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continueq)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

(continueq)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continueq)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continueq)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sale of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continueq)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities, promissory
note, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, convertible bonds, Amount due to a holding
company and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019

24 FESTETBEREIE &)

EMEERE®)

BtFE*

I ESARERDRAEDE EHRFUEKX
Y% zwatmﬁﬁme%Eﬁim
EORWBBENAEHNEEMS AEBERTE
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%mﬁi Bz
FoAERTEEHEERBROEL RMR
SHEAYRBSNESEEBERIEER
oAEEBET —EERBEEESERELSR
(ERMEB ARG ERBENETAEERZE
) M B R B R AR o

TRAE
WL BB R B

TRBERT AR D ERERFETA
BEmeRedE EXLEE EBAFBEIRN
B EE R T TANTATA (1@
R e

MBESBRABVNIRAFERREMAERK
fEEARENE AIRINBERRERX K
Z’KO

AEENSRABEEES REMBEMNFA
MESRBE AELRE BHNEBEARFE
BB RARIE - Al R fE 5 BN — R A A
RENMGERITREMES -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification
to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Convertible bonds (Tranche 1)

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative component of the convertible bonds is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continuea)
Convertible bonds (Tranche 2)

The entire convertible bonds designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition. Gains or losses
on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except
for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Film and TV drama series investments and
products

Film product represents the costs of films produced by the
Group, or for which the Group has acquired distribution
rights, and which are classified and capitalised as films
in production within film products. For films produced by
the Group, capitalised costs include all direct production
costs, production overheads and capitalised interest.
Costs of film product comprises fees paid and payable
under agreements, direct costs/expenses incurred during
the production of films, fees for the reproduction and/
or distribution of films. Production overheads include
allocable costs of individuals or departments with exclusive
or significant responsibility for production of fiims and
excludes prints and advertising costs.

Film and TV drama series investments represent films and
TV drama series invested by the Group. The investments
are governed by the relevant agreements entered into
between the Group and the production houses whereby
the Group is entitled to certain rights related to the films
and TV drama series and benefits generated from the
distribution of the related films and TV drama series based
on the percentage of capital invested in the films and TV
drama series.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Film and TV drama series investments and
products (continued)

Film and TV drama series investments and products
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
identified impairment loss. The Group amortises its costs
based on the proportion of actual income earned during
the year to the total estimation of projected revenue. Any
portion of the unamortised amount that appears not to
be recoverable is impaired in the period the loss becomes
evident.

Impairment assessment of film and TV drama series
investments and products is assessed on an annual basis
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount is below the recoverable amount,
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The recoverable amounts of film product and film and
TV drama series investments are determined and reviewed
on a title-by-title basis and are based on higher of value in
use and fair value less cost to sell.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continuead)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and the taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continuead)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Revenue is recognised when the Group has fulfilled the
obligations stated in the contracts, and when the Group
has transferred control over relative services or goods to
the customer, on the following bases:

(@)

Revenue from film and TV drama series investments
and products:

Revenue from film investments and products is
recognised based on the pre-determined share
of the sales proceeds from the distribution of the
related films set out in the respective distribution
agreements over the films screening period
according to the box office and when released
to other distribution sources. Revenue from the
licensing of TV drama series broadcasting rights is
recognised when master tapes and materials have
been delivered to broadcasting sources and the right
to play has been licenced in accordance with the
terms of the underlying agreements, and the right to
receive payment is established, based on the pre-
determined share of the sales proceeds from the
licensing of the related TV drama series set out in the
respective agreements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(b)

Sale of film and TV drama series:

Revenue from sale of film and TV drama series is
recognised at the point in time when the portion
of the underlying investments is transferred to the
customer, major obligations in the agreement has
been fulfilled and the right to receive payment is
established.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, which is at the time of delivery and
the title is passed to customer;

Revenue from promotion commission represents
revenue from gaming promotion operations which is
recognised upon promotion services are rendered;
and

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when services are provided.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument of the net carrying
amount of the financial asset;

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details
of which are included in the accounting policies for
impairment of financial assets.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019

24 FESTETBEREIE &)

W (&)
B A

FBWAUNRAHEERAERMNEEZBEEHT
HERBFHNEARRRERARRESH
é%ﬁgﬁ/?*fﬁmﬁjtﬁgum ’

A% 3R W ER AR B < SR B R RESL - 1R
\hgﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂ/ﬁkﬁﬁsﬂﬁ
Mn] SEEt 2R

=
* =
%B>J

BE& %ﬁ

BREE

BHEEMERCAEFEENERIRS
B ENERN - i E ARBEREL MK
BRI P mEFEREYWRS - Alnt
PIRIMEGEREBERANEE - SNEE
AEITRENE EFRER AR REER
BEHEETHEF -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or the payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserves. On disposal of foreign operations, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Amortisation and impairment of film and TV
drama series drama investments and products

The costs of film and TV drama series drama investments
and products are amortised upon the release of a
film based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated projected revenue.
Additional amortisation is made if estimated projected
revenues are lower than previous estimations. These
estimated projected revenues can change significantly
due to the variety of factors. Such change in revenue
projections or estimations may result in a change in the
rate of amortisation. Any portion of the unamortised
amount that appears not to be recoverable is impaired
in the period the loss becomes evident. The recoverable
amounts are reference to the marketability of each film and
current market conditions. These estimated recoverable
amounts can change significantly due to the variety of
factors. This could have an impact on the Group’s results
of operations. The carrying amounts of film and TV drama
series drama investments and products are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revenue from film and TV drama series drama
investments and products

Revenue from film and TV drama series drama investments
and products is recognised based on the pre-determined
share of the sales proceeds from the distribution of the
related films set out in the respective film investment
agreements over the films screening period according
to the box office and when released to other distribution
sources. When the final settlement statement is not yet
available, the Group estimates the revenue from film
investments based on the pre-determined share and the
preliminary settlement statement.

Fair value measurement of financial liabilities

The fair value assessment of financial liabilities of the
Group, which include derivative financial instruments
measured at level 3 fair value hierarchy, requires significant
estimates, including estimating the projected revenues
ratios and determining appropriate discount rates and
other assumptions. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the respective fair values
of these financial liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2019
was HK$802,000 (2018: Nil). The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 December 2019 was HK$144,202,000
(2018: HK$125,852,000). Further details are contained in
note 16 to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type and customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in different operating
sectors, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets is disclosed in notes 18
and 20 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ Media and culture business segment, which
engages in investment, production and distribution
of entertainment content such as films and television
series; and

(b)  Entertainment and gaming business segment, which
engages in receiving commission and services
income from casino entertainment and gaming
promotion services; and

(c) Chemical products, and energy conservation and
environmental protection products segment, which
engages in the trading of chemical products, and
energy conservation and environmental protection
products.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that interest income, non-lease-related finance
costs, fair value gains/losses from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and
cash equivalents, other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BFEFBEHR =)
INFORMATION (continued)
Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, derivative DEBETREERL ?R 15 E BETESRE
financial liabilities, amount due to a holding company, & B — R A 7 CETRRITREAM
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible BE Hxﬁ%? 7%)‘1%9% FERHIE N HAth
bonds, promissory notes, tax payable and other ﬁi%@ﬂ,ﬁ@a‘ ARBEGE WITHERZFAGRK
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these MR EEE
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DHEHERERDIZERBITMELRERNE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third —HETHEMANEEET
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_F-—-hE+-A=+—HILEEE
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Total
tIES
BiER RER AR BB R .
XILEH BEER BRES &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
Segment revenue (note 5) SR ras (B aEs5)
Sales to external customers RINERFHE 323,949 = 3,116 327,065
Segment results DEPE LK 225,325 (4,111) (4,004) 217,210
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other unallocated gains 2 7&Hﬁﬂ$ e 5,495
Interest income 80 36
Corporate and other unallocated Af] &H‘rﬁl* A LA %
expenses (20,718)
Finance costs (other than intereston BB A (T BEEHEEETFE)
lease liabilities) ) (38,234)
Change in fair value of derivative fTHeREBELATEED
financial liabilities ) (15,144)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds AT &% 2 A FEE (548)
Profit before tax BR A5 AI A 148,007
Segment assets SREE 988,290 2,559 1,826 992,675
Reconciliation: i )
Corporate and other unallocated assets A7l R 2 X DB 4 E 181,908
Total assets BEMLE 1,174,583
Segment liabilities PIEE (218,876) (25,535) (4,432) (248,843)
Reconciliation: Eil
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 7 7 & i Rk D B & & (616,188)
Total liabiliies aERE (865,031)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, WEZGBEHR =2
INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued) BE_F-hAE+-A=+—HLEE (&)
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Mediaand  Entertainment  environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Unallocated Total
{LIER
BER RER W R ETRE R
XALEH BRESR RRER RPE &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET THET THET TET
Other segment information £t &p &%}
Depreciation and amortisation  #7 % % # §4 95,075 192 1,100 46 96,413
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries i & I B 2 8] 2 E5 18 - 14 - - 14
Loss on change in fair value of fT£&RBENATEZEEE
derivative financial liabilities - - - 15,144 15,144
Loss on change in fair value of ATk E%H 2 AT EZHEE
convertible bonds - - - 548 548

Impairment losses recognised 7 1Bz KRR R EE BT E
in the statement of profit or

loss, net 3,569 - - - 3,569
Reversal of impairment loss on E &% &R EEE &

film investments (10,356) - - - (10,356)
Finance costs BEIEN 361 - 80 38,234 38,675
Capital expenditure BREY (1,183) = @ @ (1,191)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

4. BESBEE 2

HE_Z- \F+_A=+T—HBLEE

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Total
LIER
BHER IRER AR EfgE
XL ¥ B ER BRER Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR FAT FAT
Segment revenue (note 5) PR EE (B EES5)
Sales to external customers MNP P E 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
Segment results PipEE (70,148) 1,140 (5,151) (74,159)
Reconciliation: HEE:
Corporate and other unallocated gains A 7] R A fb R H Bz 12,149
Interest Income FIEHA 24
Corporate and other unallocated ARAREMRSRRAX
expense (22,979)
Finance costs BREXA (99,700)
Change in fair value of derivative TEERAENA
financial liabilities 36,153
Change in fair value of a promissory note # { ZEATEZE) 91,431
Change in fair value of contingent ERIARELTEED
consideration payable 1,563
Loss before tax BB AT B (65,518)
Segment Assets SipEE 404,035 11,065 4,012 419,112
Reconciliation: iR
Corporate and other unallocated assets A7 R E AN E L E 27,341
Total assets BEBE 446,453
Segment liabilities PisEME 11,616 25,462 4,951 42,029
Reconciliation: ik
Corporate and other unallocated ARAREMRSERAE
liabilities 567,776
Total liabilities BELE 609,805
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, WEZGBEHR =2
INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) BEZZT-N\GF+T-A=+T—HLFE (&)
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
business business products Unallocated Total
LIER
BER IRER WK E8E R
XibE® BEEB RREM ROBE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TR AT TR FAT
Other segment information HippipaEs
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH 18,782 601 209 46 19,638
Gain on derecognition of a RIFERREEK AT E L
promissory note measured at EEBENNG
amortised cost - - - (5,377) (5,377)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMB R Az BB - - = 722 722
Change in fair value of derivative TS RBBENLTFEE
financial liabilities - - - (36,153) (36,153)

Impairment losses/(reversal of SRRANEERESRE/
impairment losses) on financial (REBBRER)FE

and contract assets, net 1,142 (3,184) 215 = (1,827)
Impairment loss on fim EYEMNTECRESE
prepayments 1,921 - - - 1,921

Impairment loss on property, mE BERREREER

plant and equipment = 262 445 = 707
Impairment loss on goodwil HEREEHE 54,827 - - - 54,827
Impairment loss on fim investments & ¥ 1% & 2 R EEE 10,356 - - - 10,356
Impairment loss on a film product &% & MB{EEE 17,018 - - - 17,018
Change in fair value of financial &R FEF ABRR

assets at fair value through tREEZATERY

profit or loss = = = 797 797
Change in fair value of a EAEBRATEE

promissory note - - - (91,431) (91,431)
Change in fair value of contingent  [ER AR EBATEEH)

consideration payable - - - (1,563) (1,563)
Finance costs BEKAR - - - 99,700 99,700
Capital expenditure EXRAY 665 622 = 6 1,293
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4.

BESEBEE »)

Geographical information ih & & R

(a) Revenue from external customers (@ KEIBEFZ Kz
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
United States of America ENEERH 143,532 55,404
Mainland China FR R A i 183,533 17,687
Australia SEOM - 318
Panama Be5 - 76
327,065 73,485

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

PR EERTEREPAEM -

(b) FREEE

2019 2018
“T-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHETT FAET

United States of America ENE2ERE 5,894 =
Mainland China FH R A b 1,732 937
Hong Kong B 499 1,202
Australia SEOM - 8,503
8,125 10,642

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax
assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT 4.
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers contributing over 10% to
the total revenue of the Group is set out below:

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

BENBEE #)

FHREIEREFZEHR

KEMEREEREAERI0%HEER PRI
SEWT

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Customer A ZEA 127,476 =
Customer B ZFB 53,342 55,404
Customer C EFC 52,938 =
Customer D =FD 41,689 =
Customer E ®FE - 14,110
275,445 69,514
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. UWrzs - H g A Rl 25
GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD
2019 2018
—FE-hE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THE T
Revenue from contracts with customers KB XFEA L2 W 327,065 73,485

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

5. Wrzs - HaUg A\ RzE =)

Revenue from contracts with customers REBEFESHZWNZEH
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) PHYUEEF
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_F—NE+=-A=+—HIEE
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Mediaand  Entertainment  environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments o business business products Total
LIER
BiER RER WA EfiRE R
XILEH BEES RRER =1
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Type of goods or services GRS REER
Revenue from fim and TV drama REEF R EREEE
series investments and products 1% & K fEf 2 Wz 196,473 - - 196,473
Sale of film and TV drama series* HEEF N EREEE" 127,476 - - 127,476
Sale of goods HEEM - - 3,116 3,116
Total revenue from contracts RERFAHZ
with customers WmeE 323,949 - 3,116 327,065
Geographical markets WEHS
United States of America EHBRER 143,532 - - 143,532
Mainland China REI A 180,417 - 3,116 183,533
Total revenue from contracts REEPENZhzEE
with customers 323,949 - 3,116 327,065
Timing of revenue recognition U387 32K
At a point in time NG 323,949 - 3,116 327,065
* During the year ended 31 December 2019, sale of E BE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—BULEFE"

film and TV drama series included the net gain of
approximately HK$127,476,000 as revenue from
sale of TV drama series. The Group was entitled to
proceeds from sale of certain TV drama series of
approximately HK$446,521,000 (including tax) based
on the sales agreements.
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Wris - HaUg N\ Rz 2)

GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REFEFEHZWE (&)

(continueq)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@) ZHFUBEHF (&)
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T\FT-A=+ HLFE

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments 28 business business products Total
tIER
BER IRET AR B e e
XA EHB B ER IRIREE i )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FABT FAT FHBT
Type of goods or services B REER
Revenue from film investments £ R EWA 55,404 - - 55,404
Sale of goods HEEM - - 17,687 17,687
Promotion commission KERS - 76 - 76
Rendering of services RERE - 318 = 318
Total revenue from contracts REEPENZ
with customers WaBE 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
Geographical markets WEHS
Australia M - 318 - 318
United States of America ESIESEA 55,404 = = 55,404
Panama Be5 - 76 = 76
Mainland China FEAH - - 17,687 17,687
Total revenue from contracts REEFPEHZ
with customers WEB5E 55,404 394 17,687 73,485
Timing of revenue recognition 2% #52
At a point in time ik 55,404 394 17,687 73,485

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continueq)

(@) Disaggregated revenue information
(continueq)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers to the amounts
disclosed in the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

5. Wrzs - HaUg A\ RzE =)

REFEFEH 2R (&)
(a ZTHUBZEF &)

NTHEHIKBEFEFPANZWEENFE
KT R & B A H Bk -

BE-_S—-NLE+=-A=+—HIEE

Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and  Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments o8 business business products Total
tIER
BER RER U R EifER
XILEH BREH RRER &3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TR TR FERL TR
Revenue from contracts REEERHZIE
with customers
External customers SN 323,949 = 3,116 327,065
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5 Wz HBA Rz 2)
GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHN2ZWE &)
(continueq)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@ DHUZBER (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—N\F+-_A=+—HLFE
Chemical
products,
and energy
conservation
and
Media and Entertainment environmental
culture and gaming protection
Segments 28 business business products Total
FIER
BER RER AR B 62 Je
XL E% BREK RREM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TET TET
Revenue from contracts REEPAEH W
with customers
External customers NP 55,404 394 17,687 73,485

EXTLREKERRAT 166
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continueq)

(b) Performance obligation

Revenue from film and TV drama series
investments and products

Revenue from film investments and products is
recognised based on the pre-determined share
of the sales proceeds from the distribution of the
related films set out in the respective distribution
agreements over the films screening period
according to the box office and when released
to other distribution sources. Revenue from the
licensing of TV drama series broadcasting rights is
recognised when master tapes and materials have
been delivered to broadcasting sources and the right
to play has been licenced in accordance with the
terms of the underlying agreements, and the right to
receive payment is established, based on the pre-
determined share of the sales proceeds from the
licensing of the related TV drama series set out in the
respective agreements.

Sale of film and TV drama series

Revenue from sale of film and TV drama series is
recognised at the point in time when the portion
of the underlying investments is transferred to the
customer, major obligations in the agreement has
been fulfilled and the right to receive payment is
established.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, which is at the time of delivery and
the title is passed to customer.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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REERREREERRERERZ W

KEEFRE REM W iR AR
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TTSHE TSR BN TR MR HRER
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R E A RERRR - BB RIEIARE
BRRTRET RN BRERXERE
BEE I Y S SRR AR AR
MR P2 R G AT A R AR
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HEEMRERERR

HEBXMNEREER 2 WA NEBER
ERNBBRERP WHEITERBER
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

5. Wr#s - HaUg A\ Rikzs =)

GAINS (continued)
2019 2018
—E—-h%=E —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&IT
Other income Hib Wt A
Management fee BB 5,450 =
Waiver of interest BB FE 7,005 =
Tax rebate BB - 10,439
Bank interest income IRITH BUA 36 24
Others Efh 77 282
12,568 10,745
Gains I &5
Foreign exchange gains SN W 2 105 552
Compensation from litigation REAEE(E - 6,957
Gain on derecognition of a promissory — #R IFFERIREE B AT E 2
note measured at amortised cost ZEGTIEE i - 5,377
105 12,886
12,673 23,631

EXTLREKERRAT
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31 December 2019 —ZT— L F+=-_A=+—H
6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BR#BiALGF (B51R)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBzBRBANSF(EB) NG (5
charging/(crediting): A)ATNEIBRIESR:
2019 2018
—ET-NE —E-)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FE T
Cost of sales 85 KA 95,618 35,503
Amortisation of film and TV By MEREERNEEH 21
drama series investments* 92,592 18,241
Depreciation of property, Y- -BELRREIINE 13
plant and equipment 1,213 1,397
Depreciation of right-of-use ERAEEEFRE 15
assets 2,608 -
Minimum lease payments KEHE T o HERBENIER
under operating leases = 4,871
Lease payments not included &t ATHEAGFEHN 15(c)
in the measurement of HER K
lease liabilities 1,058 -
Auditor’s remuneration DM & 966 810
Employee benefit expense BERANFAX (MBRESER
(excluding directors’ and FEZTHA B ZH B
chief executive’s remuneration  (Fff#£8) )
(note 8))
Wages and salaries ITERH® 8,437 10,480
Pension scheme contributions R K5+ 21 i 5x 278 664
8,715 11,144
Foreign exchange differences, & & =58 - 558
net (105) (652)
Impairment of financial and TRMEEHNEERME FE
contract assets,net
Impairment of trade g5 RWGIERE F5E 18
receivables, net 2,606 164
Impairment of contract assets, A #IEERE F5E 20
net 963 554
Impairment of financial assets & ATE(S 5138 « H b fE UK 3k 19
included in prepayments, BEREMEENSREE
other receivables and B - R
other assets, net - (2,545)
3,569 (1,827)

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continuea) 6.

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

BrPimias Pl (E548) @

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff 5 FHET T
Impairment loss on B AN FRIBREREE 19
film prepayments = 1,921
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ EFIREREFEM 21
impairment loss on film CREEEER) REEE
investments and film products (10,356) 27,374
Impairment loss on property, ¥ % BB MR EREEIE 13
plant and equipment - 707
Impairment loss on goodwill mEREEE 17 - 54,827
Fair value losses/(gains), net: A (EEIE, (Uzs)  F58
Convertible bonds AR EH 29 548 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAERZ
through profit or loss TREE - 797
Derivative financial liabilities TEERBE 27,29 15,144 (36,153)
Gain on derecognition of a RIEERIRE K AT EZ 28
promissory note measured A BB
at amortised cost - (6,377)
Promissory note AR 28 - (91,431)
Contingent consideration FERTS A RAE
payable - (1,563)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & [ & A 7] &5 18 36 14 722

*

The amortisation of film and TV drama series investments
and products is included in “Cost of Sales” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* EYNEREEBRERERBHTAGAE
mk [HERA] -

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB AT :
2019 2018
—ET—-h%E —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Interest on bank loans and RITERREMEEF S

other borrowings (BEMBRES)

(including convertible bonds) 22,363 98,332
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15) HEBEFE (M3E15) 441 =
Interest expense on promissory notes 7 i, Z4& K 2 5 2 (B 5528)

(note 28) 15,871 1,368
Total interest expense on financial I IR A B AERD

liabilities not at fair value through CREBEZ B EE

profit or loss 38,675 99,700

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Mr. Sang
Kanggiao was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 20 February 2020. Mr. Wang Shoulei
resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
20 February 2020.

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEREFETHASHMN

RBERRE EREEAER_ZT_ZF_A
T+ HEZEAARRRITES  TTRELE
R_E-_EF A - +HBITALAENTE
%O

RIEEMRA - FERREHE383(1)(@) (b)*
CEMEAR AR (HEEEFZER) RHE
QHWBE L AFREEERTETBRAB ZEM
R

Group
FEE
2019 2018
—FE-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Fees e 7,132 6,647
Other emoluments: EH A<
Salaries, allowances and e EMNEYEH
benefits in kind 3,000 3,000
Pension scheme contributions IR EIMEFKR 18 18
3,018 3,018
10,150 9,665
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

8. EERFEITHBIAES M =)

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(@ Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

(@) BMFHTES

AERENBYIFNTESZASNT:

2019 2018

—ET-NE —E-N\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

B 5 FHET FHET

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak  Z2RB1=E %4 240 240

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan FREELRE 240 240

Mr. Kong Chi Mo(resigned) L& # %4 (2 & 1T) a 88 240

Mr. Hong Tao(resigned) A (BB E) b 88 240
Mr. Ma Runsheng SHEESE c

(appointed in 2019) (RZZE—hFEZMT) 152 =
Mr. Wong Wai Hung =S EAE d

(appointed in 2019) (R=ZE—NFEZMT) 152 =

960 960

a) Mr. Kong Chi Mo resigned as an independent non- a) TEREER-_ZT—NFRA+TTAE

executive director on 14 May 2019.

b) Mr. Hong Tao resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 14 May 2019.

C) Mr. Ma Runsheng was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 14 May 2019.

d) Mr. Wong Wai Hung was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 14 May 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2018: Nil).

ERELIERNITES -

b) HUEEER-ZT-A

FRATMARE

BUFRITES

o) BHEERER-_Z-NFHLATHARE
RERBIFAITEE-

d EMEREER-_T-NFEATNBEE
RERBIUFATESE-

AEEHMERNBLFATES ZHM
e (ZT—NF:8)-

EXTLREKERRAT
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continueq)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive

EERFETHAESHM o

b)) BTES FHTESREET

director and the chief executive BAE
Salaries
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
e BUR
Lok BEYREH BAEIHR st
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(i FTET FHET FTET FET
2019 —F-AE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Gao Qun BEAE 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Chau Chit BERE - 3,000 18 3,018
Ms. Chen Hong (retired) BRIzt (BRAE) a 570 - - 570
Mr. Hung Ching Fung BB E 960 - - 960
Mr. Li Haitian (resigned) FHREE (BFHE) b 220 - - 220
Mr. Chen Jie (appointed in 2019) BAGE @
(RZZ-NF
BZE) 212 - - 212
Ms. Wu Xiaoli (appointed in 2019) S/ \B#z + d
(RZZ-NF
BZE) 212 - - 212
Mr. Fang Jun (appointed in 2019)  FE LA e
(RZZ-NF
BZE) 758 - - 758
4,132 3,000 18 7,150
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Shoulei IFREE 240 - - 240
Chief executive: TETHAE:
Mr. Luo Lei BRELE 1,800 - - 1,800
6,172 3,000 18 9,190
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

8. EERFEMTHAEHM »

(continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) BMITES FHITESRETESNT
director and the chief executive BAB (#)
(continueq)
Salaries
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2K
we EWEN  RIAFTERR @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
2018 —ZT-N\F
Executive directors: WiTES:
Mr. Gao Qun SETE 287 = = 287
Mr. Chau Chit BETE S 3,000 18 3,018
Ms. Chen Hong R &+ 1,200 = = 1,200
Mr. Hung Ching Fung BT E 960 - - 960
Mr. Li Haitian FHREE 600 - - 600
Mr. Yan Xu (retired) BEmLE (BEM) 600 = = 600
3,647 3,000 18 6,665
Non-executive director: FRTESE:
Mr. Wang Shoulei FFREE 240 - - 240
Chief executive: TETHRAR:
Mr. Luo Lei BELE 1,800 - - 1,800
5,687 3,000 18 8,705

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive

(continueq)
a) Ms. Chen Hong retired as an executive director on 21
June 2019.

b) Mr. Li Haitian resigned as an executive director on 14
May 2019.

) Mr. Chen Jie was appointed as an executive director
on 23 July 2019.

d) Ms. Wu Xiaoli was appointed as an executive director
on 23 July 2019.

€) Mr. Fang Jun was appointed as an executive director
on 14 May 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four directors and the chief executive (2018: three directors
and the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of 2018 of the remaining one highest paid
employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

AEmEHMALT

AEERERSFHEERENRESE RITR
BE(CE-N\F ZREZRTHREHR) &
FHFMABHN EXWES - —F - NFEH
BB RSFMALTEIAEBEST IR
TTBRABR EHMFEDT:

2019 2018

—E-AE —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 /286 & B W48 F - 878
Pension scheme contributions RIRET K - 17
- 895

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

MEeETIHRENFEEMNIFTETHARN
= HERMABMT

Number of employees

11PN
2019 2018
= —TN\E

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 71,000,000 7T

= 1

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2019. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

10.

Fria b X

BRMNBHERFAERTSELENMEFTER
B MR B E16.56% (ZF— \F :16.5% ) &t
REGE AREAEERBE_ZT-NF+_H
=+ BLEFEYEREBELTARRT G
Ao WA BEHBENSHBERE AR
JEER 0t ) B0 TR AR AN 5% B 48 &8 R 75 P FE RUA M
B RITHERFH-

2019 2018
—E-NnE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T

Current — Hong Kong BVE—& &
Charge for the year REFZZH = =
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBREEE - -
Current — Elsewhere BUER— H A 3 [ 47,531 -
Deferred (note 16) EIE (FsE16) 3,072 =
Total tax charge for the year AFEEHIEZ LR 50,603 =

Income tax consists income tax charged on the Group
in Mainland China, United States of America (“USA”) and
Hong Kong. Provision for the PRC enterprise income tax is
calculated based on the statutory tax rate of 25% on the
assessable income of the PRC companies during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. USA income tax
applicable to the Group is charged at the federal tax rate
of 21% and state tax rate, net of federal effect, of 7.0%
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. The
income tax applicable to Hong Kong profits was provided
at a statutory tax rate of 16.5% during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
loss before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

10. R 8HFEAXZ 2

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

ERARBBADER, BEILAARR E R E A
BRI REEREEREFTEZRBRX
HEUERTRFEZHAREE  ARER
B (BEERR) RERB R ZHRNT -

2019 —T-NnE
Hong Kong United States Mainland
and others of America China Total
FEREM XH2ERE hE KK A%
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET TR THET TET
Profit/{loss) before tax BHAERH/ (BB) (39,165) 165 57,487 28.0 129,775 25.0 148,097
Taxat the statutory tax rate AT H R EORE (6,462) 165 16,087 28.0 32,444 25.0 42,069 28.4
Adjustment from previous papeked-ilindtd
periods (609) 1.6 1,819 3.2 - - 1,210 0.8
Expenses not deductible for tax A a]31%1.2 FX - - 56 0.1 21 - 7 0.1
Tax losses utilised from BRBTHEL
previous periods HEER - - - - (188) (0.1) (188) (0.1)
Tax losses not recognised RERREEE 6,462 (16.5) - - 973 0.7 7,435 5.0
Tax charge/(credit) at BASEERREGE
the Group’s effective rate ZBESE/
(%) (609) 16 17,962 31.2 33,250 25.6 50,603 34.2

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

11.

10. R 8HHEAZ 2

2018 —E-N\F
Hong Kong United States Mainland
and others of America China Total
BB RAEM EFRERE RERRE Chl
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THET TET TiEn TiEn
Loss before tax BBiAI AR (14,513) 165 (28,178) 28.0 (12,827) 25.0 (55,518)
Taxat the statutory tax rate RAEH R ENRE (2,395) 165 (7,889) 28.0 (3,207) 25.0 (13,491) 243
Effect of a different tax rate of  —REEE 4 Al AR
a subsidiary operating LEZHBARHE
in another jurisdiction THZzEE (3,455) 238 - - - - (3,455) 6.2
Tax losses not recognised REDHEEE 5,855 (40.3) 7,889 (28.0) 3,207 (25.0) 16,951 (305)
Others i )] - - - - S ) =

Tax charge/(credt) at RASEERKEHE
the Group’s effective rate JHESE/ (B) - - - - - - - -
DIVIDENDS 1. I8

No dividend has been paid or declared during each of the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. The directors
do not recommend the payment of any dividend for 2019

(2018: Nil).
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 734,518,224 (2018:
673,564,799) in issue during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share are based on:

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

12. BAE L AER A ARGEER
= H)

7 (#51

BEREABFCENRES QAL RERT
EABREERANURAEEERTHE B
A ANHE S 5 81734,518,2248% ( —Z & — )\ & :
673,564,7990% ) 5t & -

BREAREERRN, (BR) ZFEIRE
AT 8%

2019 2018
—T-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Earnings/(loss) Br,/ (E8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity £t /A &) & i@ zs B A FE(L
holders of the parent wmAl, (EE) 98,181 (49,606)
2019 2018
—T-NE —ZT—)\F
Shares 30
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AEERARERELBFTE
shares in issue during the year used ZBEITERRMELEH
in the basic earnings per share
calculation 734,518,224 673,564,799

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2019.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 December
2018 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
convertible bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amounts presented.

AEERBE—_FT-NAFT_A=1+—HBLHF
FEYECBHTHEEEEERK-

BREARTTRZ AT BRBRESHA2 2 BRE
AEReBARBERXE RAKRELEHH
EZE - N\FT+ZA=T—BLEFEERZE
BEABMNEGEFHARBEZRE-

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

13. Y% - HERRIE

EQUIPMENT
Furniture and Office Land and Motor Leasehold
fixtures equipment building vehicles  improvements Total
HIRKE BAERME THRiEF RE HENEKE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TAT THT T FET
31 December 2019 —§-AE+-A=+-H
At 1 January 2019: RZE-NE—A—-R:
Cost A 401 1,505 9,201 3,696 1,429 16,232
Accumulated depreciation and RHTERAE
impaiment (177 (1433) (697) ,174) (1,429) (5910)
Net carrying amount REFE 224 72 8,504 1,522 - 10,322
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated® ~E— N E—F—H
depreciation and impairment MRZAFTERRE 224 72 8,504 1,522 = 10,322
Additions RE - 8 - 1,183 - 1,191
Depreciation provided during the year R & 2 i & 78) (32) (192) o11) = (1,213)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &R BAR (Fi336) * - - (8,312) - - (8312)
Exchange realignment RS 57 - - (302) - (245)
At 31 December 2019, net of RZB-n&+ZA=+-R"
accumulated depreciation and MK 2HMERAE
impairment 203 48 = 1,492 = 1,743
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-n4+-A=+-A:
Cost A 458 1,513 - 4,577 1,429 7,977
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (055) (1,465) - (3,085) (1,429) (6,234)
Net carrying amount REFE 203 48 - 1,492 - 1,743

During the year ended 31 December 2019, land and
building at the net carrying amount of HK$8,312,000
(2018:Nil) were disposed of due to the disposal of
subsidiaries (note 36). No property, plant and equipment
were pledged as at 31 December 2019 (2018:Nil).
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. Y12 M E RRE o)
EQUIPME NT(com‘/nueo?
Furniture and Office Land and Motor Leasehold
fixtures equipment building vehicles  improvements Total
RARKE BAERE THREF RE  HENEEKE &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET THAT THT THT TBT
31 December 2018 “E-N\E+ZA=t+-H
At 1 January 2018: R=E-N§—-f—-R:
Cost KA 282 1,491 9,201 3,132 1,148 15,254
Accumulated depreciation and RHTERAE
impairment (111) (1,306) (488) (1,547) (525) (4,067)
Net carrying amount REFE 171 9 8,713 1,585 623 11,187

At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated® —E— \&—F—H

depreciation and impairment MRZAFTERRE 171 9% 8713 1,585 623 11,187
Additions RE 119 53 - 77 404 1,293
Depreciation provided during the year R & 2 i & 66) (34) (209) (727) (361) (1,397)
Impairment (B - (#1) - - (666) (707)
Exchange realignment EHAR - ) - (53) - (54)

At 31 December 2018, net of RZB-NE+ZA=+-H"
accumulated depreciation and MK 2HMERAE

impaiment 224 72 8504 1522 - 10,322
At 31 December 2018: RZB-\E+ZRA=+—R:
Cost A 401 1,506 9,201 3,696 1,429 16,232
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (177 (1,439) (697) (2,174 (1,429) (5.910)
Net carrying amount FEFE 224 72 8,504 1,522 = 10,322

ERXIREREERAT
—E-NEER
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31 December 2019 — =&

13.

14.

—lEEaE sl = SealE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPM ENT(com‘/nued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
incurred segment losses in the chemical products,
and energy conservation and environmental protection
products segment.

The recoverable amounts of motor vehicles were
determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal,
estimated by reference to recent market transactions in
similar assets adjusted for differences in condition. The
fair value less costs of disposal is classified as a level 3
measurement. For the years ended 31 December 2019, no
impairment loss was recognised to write down the carrying
amount of motor vehicles (2018: Nil).

The recoverable amounts of leasehold improvements
and office equipment were determined based on the
value in use. During the year ended 31 December
2019, no impairment loss was recognised for leasehold
improvements and office equipment. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, an impairment loss of
HK$666,000 represented the write-down of leasehold
improvements as the Group had refurbishment of the
office and no impairment loss was recognised on office
equipment.

13. ¥ -BERRE =)

RBE-ZF-NAF+-_A=+t—HLEEE XK
R BB TE n DA R BT BE S RIRE mn 0 BR 815
DEEIR -

REHNAKRESBEDREAFERBERK
(R2ZRUEENOHT SRS (EHRAR
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%)#ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ”*°”$ﬁﬂ
HEXRREDBREIRNFTE - REEZ

—NETZA=t—BLFE #E $Z%

HEMERRASBREESR (ZF—N\F £)-
HEMERERRAZTREBEZARLEEETD
RiEREEEE - RBEE-_FT—NF+_-HA

=t—BUEFE SEAEEVERELRA
ERERDBEBER - RBE_Z—N\F+ =
A=1+—BLL%E  BEEIE#666,000/8 7T 4
PR N £ [ 3 8 9 8 = 1 S8 SR e T B SR M ORI
BERRAEREBEZDBERER-

CLUB DEBENTURE EFRESH
2019 2018
—E—-h%=E —E—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&ET FAETT
Club debenture as at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—HZEMES 320 320

At the end of the reporting period, the club debenture is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. As at
31 December 2019, the directors considered that there
was no impairment of the club debenture since the market
price less costs to sell was higher than its carrying value.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

15. LEASES 15. #HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of AEBBERAREXBRLENZ EEFIEEHAE
buildings used in its operations, which have lease terms B4 HEBNTF1Z28F - — KM s AEET
between 1 and 8 years. Generally, the Group is restricted ARAAEENIIATEERSBAHEESEE -
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.
(a) Right-of-use assets (@ FHEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use FA - AEEGTAEEEZRABEREE
assets and the movements during the year are as wmT
follows:
Buildings
gF
HK$’000
T
As at 1 January 2019 RZTE—-hFE—H—H 7,979
Additions NE 691
Depreciation charge e (2,608)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZT-NAF+ZA=+—H 6,062

ERLREEFEHRAT 184
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B 155 ¥R 2= B 5%
31 December 2019 —ZT— L F+=-_A=+—H
15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continuead)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

15. 1§ ()

AEBERABA &)
b) HEERE
En HEABEEEEREHMT

2019
—FT-NE
Lease liabilities
HEAaR
HK$’000

FHET

Carrying amount at 1 January
New leases
Accretion of interest recognised

R—R—BZEEE 7,979
HHEE 691
FARNEERZRFHE

during the year 441
Payments BN (2,799)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt-—A=+—B82z2KkEE 6,312
Analysed into: V=K

Current portion mENE 7 2,241

Non-current portion IEMENEB 4,071

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 41 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

15. LEASES (continueq) 15. HE (»)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEBEABEAN 2
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) MEZEREHEBENKIEHT
leases are as follows:
2019
—E-AE
HK$’000
FHET
Interest on lease liabilities MEBEMNE 441
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENELL 2,608
Expense relating to short-term leases and other B HMEE R THEAR
leases with remaining lease terms ended on ZE-NEFE+TZA=FT—HzZH
or before 31 December 2019 (included in ERmnEtaHEEEENAX
administrative expenses) (BT ATTERS) 1,058
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIB s MR A NI 42 78 4,107
(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d) BHEEAHAENHEEERA - HERERE
outflows relating to leases that have not yet RARBERLBES NBEERT KR
commenced are disclosed in notes 35(c) and 37, M 5E35(c) 237 °

respectively, to the financial statements.
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31 December 2019 —ZT— L F+=-_A=+—H
16. DEFERRED TAX 16. EEHIE
Deferred tax assets EZEHEEE
2019
=t B RS
Amortisation of Impairment
Loss available film and TV of financial
for offsetting drama series and
against future Accrued investments contract
profit interests  and products assets Others Total
TRAFHR TYRTHE  SURAY
pitibd i BitHE RARfEREH BERE Hib &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET THT T T FET
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-NE-A—R - - - - - -
Deferred tax credited to the FRGABREN
statement of profit or loss EEHIE (M5E10)
during the year (note 10) 6,672 3,636 10,063 802 1,055 22,228
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-NE
31 December 2019 +ZA=1+—AK
BREREEESE 6,672 3,636 10,063 802 1,055 22,208
Deferred tax liabilities BLEREER
2019
—E-hE
Accrual to
cash adjustment
related to
filmand TV
drama series Depreciation of
investments property, plant
and products and equipment Total
FHAERR
EHBBRERER - -BRER
HeREEtER REWE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—AH = = =
Deferred tax charged to the statement of ~ FRRBEERINBEAIELETH
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (KIzE10) 25,203 97 25,300
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZE-NF+ZA=+—HH
31 December 2019 ELEH B GERE 25,203 97 25,300

187 Annual Report 2019
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16. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

715 ¥ 2= B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

6. IBEBIE &)

RERME ETEEHAEERAGAD Y
BN TP EARE I - AR BB % B 5 A
HHRERBERDOTAT :

2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the &R G B TS AR S R 3% TR A
consolidated statement of financial position BIERIEE EFE 802
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RS B AR TR R T RR Y
consolidated statement of financial position R IBEEFE 3,874

At 31 December 2019, under the current tax legislation
of other jurisdictions, the Group’s unused tax losses of
HK$131,142,000 (2018: HK$112,106,000) are available
indefinitely for offsetting against any future taxable profits of
the subsidiary in which the losses arose. Under the current
tax legislation of the PRC, tax loss of HK$13,060,000
(2018: HK$13,746,000) can be carried forward for five
years since the year the loss is incurred. This unrecognised
tax loss is loss of approximately HK$13,060,000 (2018:
HK$13,746,000) that will expire at various dates up to and
including 2024 (2018: up to and including 2023).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the above items as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above
items can be utilised.

RZE-AE+A=1+—08 RBEHEMAE
BEMNBEOHRZEZ ASBEARHAREEER
131,142,000 7t (=& — A\ 4 : 112,106,000
B AERBRENELEEBEBNNE AR A
Y £ fA] R 2R B ER B0& 7l o IRIE R BIRIT LA -
13,060,000 T HMIEEE (2T — \F:
13,746,000/ L) Al BB EELE 2 FEE
488 o SRFERR T IE B 18 49 413,060,000
T (ZZT— \45F 13,746,000/ 7T) ' 5 REZE
ZECNF (BREF) (ZEBE-N\F HEZ
Z-F (RREF) WNZEATRBEHER-

W LA R ERRERIBEEE  RAST
KA B ERBOS N A e A L IRA -

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

16. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items:

IREBLIE (#)

MATRBEARERREE:

2019 2018

—T-NE —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAETT

Unused tax losses AERAMIAEE 144,202 125,852

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately HK$99,727,000 at
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. &
HK$’000
T T
At 1 January 2018: RZE—N\E—AF—A8:
Cost B 7R 98,671
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE (43,844)
Net carrying amount BREFE 54,827
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated RZFE-—NF—H—B2ZKA
impairment Nk BFHRIE 54,827
Impairment during the year FNRIE (54,827)
Cost and net carrying amount RZZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—H8"
at 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and “E-NEF—-—A—HRK
31 December 2019 —T-AF+-_A=+—H8zZ
AN R AR R E =
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and RZE—N\F+ZH=+—H" HK$’000
31 December 2019: —E-hEF—A—BXK F#ET
—E-AF+ZA=+—8:
Cost B AR 98,671
Accumulated impairment REPRE (98,671)
Net carrying amount IREFE -
Impairment testing of goodwiill B EDRI R
Goodwill acquired through business combination was BREBEHEB L HEBNDIRETIRESE
allocated to the following cash-generating unit for A BAETTRVE R -

impairment testing:

e Media and culture cash-generating unit e FEEENM(EReELSBN

ERLREEFEHRAT 190
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the media and culture cash-
generating unit (“Media and Culture CGU”) has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. In the
opinion of the directors, the existing projects would
generate revenue for the CGU within seven years and
the revenue for the period after seven years is minimum.
The value in use is determined by discounting the future
cash flows to be generated from the film production and
investment projects over the next seven years, using
an average pre-tax discount rate of 22% approved by
management. No projection has been extrapolated for any
subsequent years beyond the 7-year cash flow forecast.

Since the actual box office revenue from the film product
owned by the Media and Culture CGU was significantly
lower than expected revenue, the directors of the
Company adjusted the expected performance of other
films. Since the recoverable amount of the Media and
Culture CGU based on the value in use calculation was
less than the carrying amount, impairment provision of
HK$54,827,000 for goodwill was made during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based
on market data and expectations associated with the film
production and investment industry.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflected current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the film production and
investment business.

Revenue — The basis used to determine the value
include budgeted box office revenue and revenues from
other sources based on market data and expectations
associated with the film production and investment
industry.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

18. B BB RIE

2019 2018
—ET-NE —E—)\4F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET T T

Trade receivables 5 EREIE 267,201 7,331
Impairment BB (9,238) (6,633)
257,963 698

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit periods are
usually from 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 180 days) for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group
generally does not charge interest for credit granted.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEERETFESBRRETELERE
BEE—REEEAZBRIIN - TERFENEES
— M A30EH (ZZ— A\F 3081801 ) °
BUREFPHBEREERTE AEEBKKE R
BEZEBRERESEBRIREETREEEE
HPANBEERBRRERE - 5452 E T H
BRI MEBAH  AEBBE TS REMENE
BREAE - AEETEGEE S ERGIELS
BRIEFEMAERRIEMEE - B HRKFHIE
BT B

RBEHR EHREFERER B LN
ERBE RGO

2019 2018

—E—-h%E —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Within 1 month 1E B AR 257,963 -
1 to 3 months 1231 A - 34
Over 3 months 31E A M+ - 664
257,963 698

ERLREEFEHRAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

18. B S FEUGFRIE ()

HEORURBEREBRREEZIHNT

2019 2018
—E-N%E —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
At beginning of year REH 6,633 6,840
Impairment losses (note 6) WAEEE (M7E6) 2,606 164
Exchange realignment Rk (1) (371)
At end of year JINCEFN 9,238 6,633

The increase (2018: decrease) in the loss allowance was
due to the following changes in the gross carrying amount:

(i) Increase in the loss allowance of HK$2,606,000
(2018: HK$164,000) as a result of a net increase
in the gross carrying amount after the settlement
of trade receivables and origination of new trade
receivables.

(i)  Decrease in the loss allowance of HK$1,000 (2018:
HK$371,000) as a result of exchange realignment.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type and
customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

18. B S EUIRRIE (2)

TREJAEEERBEEEAENE ZEK

RENEERRER

R-T—h&E+=-A=+—H

Past due
b
Less than 1to Over
Current 1 month 3 months 3 months Total
B 118 A A 1E3(EA 3fE A Wt @zt
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 1.00% 10.00% 50.00% 100.00% 3.46%
Gross carrying amount EmeE
(HK$'000) (F#T) 260,568 - - 6,633 267,201
Expected credit losses BHEEBAR
(HK$'000) (FA&T) 2,605 - - 6,633 9,238
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NE+=-_A=+—8
Past due
B
Less than 1to Over
Current 1 month 3 months 3 months Total
2 H 1A R 1E3EA SEANE Bar
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.98% 9.80% 49.80% 100.00% 90.48%
Gross carrying amount FE#E
(HK$000) (FA&T) 705 - - 6,626 7,331
Expected credit losses BHEEEAR
(HK$'000) (F#&1) 7 - - 6,626 6,633

EXTLREKERRAT

TE-NEFR



195

31 December 2019 — =&

Notes to Financial Statements
871 15 ¥R R Bid 5

—lEEaE sl = SealE

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

19. Eg%’tlﬁ Hith FEWr R IE & H fth

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5E FHET T T
Advances to patrons BESSE-EX (@) 133,062 133,105
Amounts due from casinos JE AU AR B 35 3R T (@) 3,329 3,329
Other receivables Hoth B UK I,E
- Prepayments —TBfIFRIB 25,584 2,965
— Other receivables and — H A W GRIE & ()
deposits paid BEfZE 94,046 67,496
Amounts due from directors EWEEHIA (b)
(note 38) (MI5E38) 1,094 78
257,115 206,973
Impairment allowance BB R (134,550) (134,595)
122,565 72,378
Film prepayments ES-2=NEREUNE S (©
— Prepayment to film directors BT EE% & B Y
A 185,530 163,797
— Prepayment to fim and TV — AN TEFEREDN
drama series RIE 16,643 13,927
202,173 177,724
Impairment allowance B (1,921) (1,921)
200,252 175,803
322,817 248,181

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

(continued)

Notes:

(@

Other receivables and deposits mainly represent rental
deposits, deposits with suppliers and other receivables.
Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss
rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The loss rate applied for advances to patrons
and amounts due from casinos as at 31 December 2019
was 98% (2018: 98%), and the loss rate applied to other
receivables and deposits paid as at 31 December 2019
was 0.4% (2018: 1%).

The amounts due from directors are unsecured, interest-
free and is repayable on demand.

Prepayments to film directors represent advance payments
to directors for their services in the preparation of motion
picture development proposal and the development
cost to be incurred by them in the course of work, while
prepayments to film and TV drama series production
represent the production cost incurred for one movie and
one television series projects in progress.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

P2

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

10, FATRKIE S TEM IR 2
(#&)

Hih s E Rize E BIEMERE  HEEE
S REMERRIE - BHEEBRIE2ER
SEBTEELSERBEEFAETME
518 R AT B DA R B BT AR O B TEOBI SR PR A
AR (ER) - R=ZT—AFE+=A=+—H
FEAR ARSI EWIR SIS IIA Y BiaR
5B98% (ZT—N\F:08%) MR _T—h&F
T A=+ HEANHEGERFERE MR
S ZEBERE04% (ZE—NF:1%) °

FBUREZFESEER RERREREER-

BN TEFEERNFREASERESHEY
RSP HORBRE TEBRTEES
MRZEERMBANNIE MEF MEREIH
FRRNFRIREETTFN —REX R —HERE
HEEEMNEEER-

B OR - B RAGRIA R B B B 2 R E S

prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as BEEEBNT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FET
At beginning of year REH 136,516 137,140
Impairment losses on prepayments and 815 A & H 4th g Ug 50 IE
other receivable (note 6) 2R EEE (Ki5Ee) - 1,921
Reversal of impairment losses VEREEY SF1=EcqEl = (2,545)
Exchange realignment M H A (45) -
At end of year JINCEFN 136,471 136,516

EXALIREEBABRAT
ZE-NFFH
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

20. CONTRACT ASSETS 20. BHEE

2019 2018
—EB—-hE —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Contract assets arising from: REUTHBZENEE:

Revenue from film and TV drama B RERBIRE R
series investments and products SEW = 146,217 55,404
Impairment WA (1,462) (554)
Exchange realignment ME H B (2) -
144,753 54,850

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from film and TV drama series investments and products
as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
completion of film and TV drama series exhibition and
release to all distribution sources. Upon completion of
film and TV drama series exhibition and release to all
distribution sources, the amounts recognised as contract
assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in
contract assets in 2019 and in 2018 was the result of the
new release of films and TV drama series at the end of the
years.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$1,462,000
(2018: HK$554,000) was recognised as an allowance for
expected credit losses on contract assets.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019

BREENIAEY NERBIRE REERN
ZWEETHER RRAASREBEAFEZRER
BI AR _EBR K 3% M = P A BATIRIZ 07 AT AR -
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EHEETEEEBEEE1,462,0008 T (=
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

20. CONTRACT ASSETS (continuea) 20. & .%"] SE#®)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract RTZR=+—B2z&#&EWKED k4 E T8 5
assets as at 31 December is as follows: R :

2019 2018
—g-n% —N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Within one year —FR 144,753 54,850

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BREEZREBEREZSHNT

contract assets are as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

At beginning of year R E ) 554 -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEE - FEE (K5Ee) 963 554
Exchange realignment PE & (55) =
At end of year JINGEEN 1,462 554

EXTLREKERRAT 198
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

20. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates for the measurement of the
expected credit losses on the contract assets are based
on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets
and the trade receivables are from the same customer
bases. The provision rates for contract assets are based
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type and customer type).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s contract assets using a provision

20.

SHEE »

REHwE R BRABBBREMEETREDN A
AEREHMEEEE - EANEERBEER
BeBBERDANESRUFAZBERRE
% REARSEHEEREHRYGARAR—
EFER -GHNEEZREBEXIENRAFEMU
BEEANZEARTF 2 EERN 28 5 RIKKIA
MBRBET (kR EmBiRER
BRIEID) - LAt ERBREARXMBELER B
RELRXRBREEHASHAREEER 28
AR B ARREERETENNSIE R A FEER -

TREIEARBEREDTNARAEESH
BEZEERRZER:

matrix:
2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—)\F
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIEX 1% 1%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) BEmeE (5T 146,217 55,404
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHIEEREE (FET) 1,462 554

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

21. EXRERBIREREME

21. FILM AND TV DRAMA SERIES

INVESTMENTS AND PRODUCTS

(@) Film and TV drama series investments (a) EXRERBRE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFHET FAETT
Cost: R :
At 1 January n—H—H 133,772 =
Additions NE 525,623 133,772
Disposal* HE* (289,199) -
Exchange realignment ME W A (675) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—AH 369,521 133,772
Accumulated amortisation HeHE S RIEE
and impairment
At 1 January »—A—H (28,597) =
Amortisation during the year F (92,592) (18,241)
Reversal of impairment loss/ FRREEERERD
(impairment loss) during the year (B &) 10,356 (10,356)
Exchange realignment P & 1,031 -
(109,802) (28,597)
Net carrying amount: BRTEFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 259,719 105,175

EXTLREKERRAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

21. FILM AND TV DRAMA SERIES 21. EXREREIBRERRE 2
INVESTMENTS AND PRODUCTS
(continued)
(@) Film and TV drama series investments () BERERBRE @)

(continueq)

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, iy HE_Z-NF+A=1+T—HLHF
the Group is entitled to proceeds from sale of E REHEEHZ AEBARELE
certain TV series investments of approximately ETEREERRERNSHBRELN
HK$446,521,000 (including tax) based on the sales 446,521,000/ 70 (5F) - AEE D #ER
agreements. The Group has recognised the net gain U 25 F 88 49127,476,0008 T AK B HE
of approximately HK$127,476,000 as revenue from BEREERFE WG (HIFES) ©

sale of TV drama series investments (note 5).

The Group reviews its film and TV drama series AEE2ZEGHELRERBE 2 EIEMN
investments and products regularly to assess BRIMSRATEHRTEEZRER
if there is any indicator of impairment and the BIi& & R &UE - AT R E FEE(RE
related recoverable amount with reference to the TR EAEITIRE 25 EFRERER
marketability of each fim and TV drama series Ble el Bl @ FEIAZR ST BERETE -

current market conditions. The recoverable amount
of the film investments and TV drama series was
determined on a title-by-title basis.

The Group assessed that there were impairment
indicators of five film investments because of the
change of comparable market information and
expected performance. Since the recoverable
amount of these fims (HK$194,241,000) based on
the value-in-use calculation was higher than the
carrying amount (HK$153,868,000), no impairment
provision (2018: HK$10,356,000) for the film
investments was made during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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21. FILM AND TV DRAMA SERIES
INVESTMENTS AND PRODUCTS

(continued)

(a)

Film and TV drama series investments
(continueq)

The recoverable amount of film investment was
determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses the present value of the expected
future cash flows arising from the pre-determined
share of proceeds of the film which was derived
from discounting the projected future cash flows
at a discount rate of 18% (2018: 22%). Key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow include the
budgeted box office revenue, revenues from other
sources, distribution expenses and discount rate.
Such estimation is based on the historical box office
of the same director and main cast members, the
market comparable data of films with the same
theme, and management’s expectations of the
market development. The discount rate used are
before tax and reflected current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the film production and investment business, and
also the life cycle of the specific film.

As at 31 December 2018, impairment provision of
HK$10,356,000 for a film investment was made. As
at 31 December 2019, since the recoverable amount
of the film investment (HK$2,497,000) based on the
value in use calculation was more than the carrying
amount (HK$1,635,000), the impairment provision of
HK$10,356,000 for the film investment was reversed.

21.

31 December 2019 — =&

715 ¥ 2= B 5

SlEE = == E

EXRERBRERRE 2

—~

~—

-EEE/

EFXRERBKRE &)

BEXREAME B TENEAEE
B (ERR18%MITIR RITEFAHIR KR
ERESENERELMERBE AL
#Efﬁ%ﬁz%éﬁﬂ*XEE%/MLELQJE(_?
—N\F:22%) ) MEE - RRETA T
HEsEENERBETENEERR
BREEEERE K HaRRN K 5
HFA X MR K - ZAFT I ERE -8 &
RFEZEENRBEIERE R—FTEEXH
MR LERBEBEREREETSERD
TEE-FTARR R AHAIBE X RLE
AE¥EEEETSITERELRIER

REZBFENRR  TRBRETEZH
R-ZFE-NF+ZA=+—B #H—"

B R E TR E B #10,356,000%8
T RZE—NF+ZA=+—H @
REREAEEFTENEZRETK
o4 %8 (2,497,000 T m RN EREE
(1,635,000 L) EREEXZREZR
{E B %10,356,000/% 7T °

o
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TE-NEFR

202



'er2019_7 NEFE+= H =8

21. FILM AND TV DRAMA SERIES 21. ERREREIBREREE @
INVESTMENTS AND PRODUCTS
(continueq)
(b) Film products (b) EXEM
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T
Cost: B :
At 1 January W—A—~H 17,191 16,855
Exchange realignment PN AR - 336
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A~ 17,191 17,191
Accumulated amortisation and RETEEENORE:
impairment:
At 1 January R—HA—H (17,191) (173)
Impairment during the year FRRE = (17,018)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8” (17,191) (17,191)
Net carrying amount: BREDFE -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A~ - -

203 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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31 December 2019 — =&

21. FILM AND TV DRAMA SERIES 21.
INVESTMENTS AND PRODUCTS

(continued)

== B/ ] =
BREM &)

T

(b) Film products (continuead)

The Group reviewed its film products regularly to
reassess the estimated recoverable amount of the
film products with reference to the marketability

AEE2ESREL 2 EHERE AT
BIRE RS EEYEMAENT A
EYEMNAETAIRDSE - EXEMN

of each fim and current market conditions. The Ak El B NREST A RIRBEFERE
recoverable amount of the film products was Bt (FREEXEIETREER K%

determined on a title-by-title basis and is based on a
value in use calculation which uses the present value
of the expected future cash flows arising from the
licensing and distribution of the film products after
the completion of film production, which was derived
from discounting the projected future cash flows at a
discount rate of 27%.

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations

TErEREEANERAKRBERER
2T% TR RFTEMNBRE) MERE °

EREEAENIERRERERAS

related to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow MG (BEEERE B X1
include the budgeted revenue and gross margin, RERTVE) B - ZEFTTERRE—

growth rate and discount rate. Such estimation

BRELRTREEMNBERS FA—TEE

is based on the historical box office of the same EHMSAILREEREREEHEM S
director and main cast members, the market E&TEHE] -

comparable data of films with the same theme,

and management’s expectations of the market

development.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group REBEEZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—HIHF
assessed that there were impairment indicators B -AEYERERKEBRERRTERK
because the actual box office revenue from mo ARBENEEFEREDR REE

the film was significantly lower than expected
revenue. Since the recoverable amount based on

E-N\F+_A=+—RHLFE AR
*ETFL}J%H%T BfEWA kB2 BRE

the aforementioned value in use calculation was REEEE REXEREENRESER
less than the carrying amount, impairment loss of 17,018,000 L B ZE =T — N F+= H
HK$17,018,000 for the film product was made =T—HIFE EXNERRRYTES
during the year ended 31 December 2018. During Bo

the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
changes of the actual performance of the film.

EXTLREKERRAT
TE-NEFR
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. e RFLEFEHIER
2019 2018
—EB—-hE —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH

Denominated in RMB UARBE 18,595 1,569
Denominated in HK$ A TTEHE 15,273 9,093
Denominated in AUD VORESEHE 76 78
Denominated in US$ AETTEHE 146,460 16,167
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReEEEE 180,404 26,907
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBFEHER TEBUARBFEZRER
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted IRITHE R0 518,595,000/8 T (— & — )\ F:
to approximately HK$18,595,000 (2018: HK$1,569,000). 1,569,000 7T) - AR T BEER A RABEM
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, B AW RE B A 2 S iE E 2R I A
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange LitE - SERNETEHAT A5EEES
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale BEREETINEEB ZRTHARELRA
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group HME® -RITHB2RE A RITERFEA

is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through FER KR

banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. B ETRIA

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end REBEEHBMR BIENRBEREZAHZE

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BT :

follows:

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
1 to 3 months 12318 A - 21
Over 3 months 2 :B31E A 3,162 3,198
3,162 3,219

205 Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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24.

Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE PAYABLES (continueq)

The trade payables are unsecured, interest-free and
normally settled base on the terms of the contract. The
fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period approximated to their corresponding carrying
amounts due to their relatively short maturity terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23.

24.

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

BSEMNRIE 2

EORNREREBER 2ELBERESLD
ERAEE RN AHRENI MR NS
HARZEZRNFIAZ A FERLBEREE
HE -

H fth & 1 =R IR R FE T & H

Current B HA
2019 2018
—E-h%E —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Amounts due to casinos JEST IR 4435 7 FRI8 2,478 2,478
Amounts due to patrons JENEFE 238 1,176 1,176
Other payables and accruals Efh R RIB R ERTE A 145,971 22,423
149,625 26,077

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The fair values of other
payables at the end of the reporting period approximated
to their corresponding carrying amounts.

HiENREREFERARSEERM 28 RE
BREREE RNBERRZEMBENTIBEZA
FEAEAREKREEMRS -

Non-current JEENHA
2019 2018
—F-hE —E—)N\&F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Other payables Hoih fE < 5RIB - 1,552

There are no non-current other payables or accruals at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$1,552,000).

NR-E—NE+-_A=+—BEEENBAEM
ERNZERESER (22— /\%F 1,552,000
BIT) °

ERXIREREERAT
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. BHAE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—F-hE —E-N\F —E—N\F
+=-—A=+—H +=—A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THR THR THR
Short-term advances Wz & P 52 B3 50
received from custormers
Sale of fim investments HEBEFIRE N
and rendering of IR R AR 75
related services 71,936 - -
Sale of goods HEE M - 1,290 1,024

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received

EHREEEINEREZRE RHARRS
RZNEMBEZ TP EHER-

26.

from customers to transfer film investments, provide
related services and deliver products.

The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due
to the increase in advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of film investments. The increase in
contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to short-term
advances received from customers to deliver products.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

R-ZF-NF ANABRENIHERALEE
FREWMZEFPBFEM-R_F—N\F-
EBHRBENTERERNERBRZEFE
HREA K o

. FE Bt /8 2 Bl i A IR SRR IA

2019 2018
—®-n% —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&TT
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A BT B 2 R) FEFE AR AR R IE
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900 20,900

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
maturity date.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. st RRITRHEMEES
OTHER BORROWINGS
2019 2018
ZE-0E —T-N\E
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
EBHE(%) EL TEL  ERAE%) 3 FHAT
Current BN
Borrowings - unsecured fEE—&&HE  (noteh) 3-10 2020 122,343 3-10 2019 130,047
GEDY —¥-%% —E-NE
Fim investment loans ~ EFREER  (hoteq) 3-6 2020 89,484 6 2019 27,740
GED) k- et - —T-NF
211,827 158,687
Convertible bonds aRES (note 29) - - - 31 2019 266,821
(H3E29) “T-hE
211,827 425508
Non-current FEENH
Bank loan - secured ~ RTEH-FHE (hote a) LIBOR+2.5 2021 71,384 = = =
(Mi+¥a) wH{BT —BI-F
F¥HE
2.5
Borrowings -unsecured fEE—EH#HE  (hoteb) 3-6 2021 55,114 = = =
GEDY —3--%
Fim investment loans ~ EFREER  (hoteq) 3-6 2021 23,376 4-11.25 2020-2021 113,433
(MizEc) —B--f “E-EFz
—E--F
149,874 113,433
361,701 538,941

erxiagxmanas |50
—E-NEER
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31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

27.

ATRERTREMES »)

2019 2018
—ET-NE —FE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
Analysed into: AAATIER :

Bank loans: RITER:

In the second year FE_FR 71,384 =
71,384 -

Other borrowings repayable: HihpEEEEE:

Within one year —F R 211,827 158,687

In the second year F_FR 78,490 63,389
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FEFRF

(BREEREME) - 50,044

290,317 272,120

361,701 272,120

Notes: B 5T

(@  The bank loan of HK$71,384,000 (2018: Nil) as at 31 @ RZE-—NAF+ZA=Z+—HZRITER
December 2019 was secured by the pledge of 100% of 71,384,000 T (ZE— \F:B)BAAE
the Group’s equity interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary, RE2%EWE QA - BlStarlight Culture
namely Starlight Culture Entertainment Limited, and 100% of Entertainment Limited 2> 2B 89 it i — 2 B &
the membership interests in a film producer, which is owned BRANZHEE#E (KA —2EXHER
by a film director. Interest was charged at LIBOR plus 2.5% B)EHE IR - F) IR M BURTTRI 37 B N2.5%
per annum. FEMEFTE -

(o) The current interest-bearing loans amounted to ) RZZE-—AF+ZA=+—HEHFEER
HK$122,343,000 as at 31 December 2019 which bear © %8 /3122,343,000% 7T R E F X T F3%E
interest at rates from 3% to 10% per annum and are 10%ETERR T FEE -F{E AR
repayable in 2020.The newly borrowed non-current loans B3 $ 5 A55,114,0008 70 - IHWEF RN F3%
amounting to HK$55,114,000 which bear interest rate from ZO%FTERR T —FEE-

3% 1o 6% per annum are repayable in 2021.
(¢)  The film investment loans represented loans from the film ) BERREEFERGEZEREENER BE

209

investors which bear fixed interest at rates from 3% to 6%
per annum. The repayment dates are subject to the release
dates of fims.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2019
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continueq)

Certain film investment loans also bear variable interest
rates depending on the box office revenue generated from
the films, which are derivative components and should be

27.

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

ARERTREMEE &)

ETEXREENMRIANETELERRF K
SmZFBNRGFE  BER/ITERIRBARE
FREEFR I FAB AV EFE-EXRER

separated from the film investment loans and measured ROTER DB ENT -
at fair value. The summary of movements in the derivative
component of the film investment loans is as follows:
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemBasE
2019 2018
—ET-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January n—H—H - =
Change in fair value of derivative TTEERAEATESE
financial liabilities 15,144 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—AH 15,144 -

Changes in the fair value of the derivative component of
the film investment loans amounting to HK$15,144,000
(2018: Nil) were charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
value of the derivative component was considered to be
insignificant in 2018.

RERNBYREEIITEBS AT EEDS

B /515,144,0008 70 (ZE— \F: 8)5F A8
HERAN - BEERE N N\FHNTEILS
ZAFEBELTTEK-

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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28. PROMISSORY NOTE 28. BRREE

The carrying value of the promissory notes measured at RBHK AT ENALEREDBENT

amortised cost is as follows:

2019 2018

—F-NE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FAET

At 1 January n—HA—H 17,000 95,226

Interest A 15,871 1,368
Recognition of a promissory note BREATFEFENFALER

measured at fair value (note a) (MF3Ea) = (91,431)
Gain on derecognition of a promissory  #% |- FE SRR H A AN AT B 8

note measured at amortised cost FH BB (HiEa)

(note a) = (6,377)
Issuance of promissory notes BITARER (M5Eb - Miske)

(note b, note c) 266,989 17,000
Repayment of principal during the year FR{EE RS (BisEb - Mistc)

(note b, note ¢) (274,998) -
Repayment of interests during the year & R{EEF| 8 (KiiEb - Histc)

(note b, note ¢) (13,924) -
Exchange realignment ME W S 9 214
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 10,947 17,000
Less: Interest payable including in other & : 5+ A E 4 &~ 208 K&

payables and accruals JEETBRMEMNTIS (1,947) -
9,000 17,000
The carrying value of the promissory notes measured at BEAVEHENALZREREEERT
fair value is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FET
At 1 January Rn—H—H - -
Recognition of a promissory note HRIEAFEFTEN

measured at fair value (note a) BT (WHixa) - 91,431
Gain on change in fair value of EAHBRANFEZB RS

a promissory note - (91,431)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8 - =

9,000 17,000
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28. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 13 December 2017, the Company issued a promissory
note with a principal amount of US$12,884,615 (equivalent
to HK$100,500,000), as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire equity interests in the Starlight Legend
Group. The promissory note was unsecured, interest-free
and had a maturity date of 12 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the promissory note was
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method with the effective interest rate at 6% per annum.

On 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a side letter with
the existing promissory note holder and agreed that:

(i) both parties shall jointly appoint an independent
valuer, to conduct a valuation of the Starlight Legend
Group as at 31 December 2018 (the “Updated
Valuation”). The determination by the independent
valuer shall be final and binding on the existing
promissory note holder and the Company.

(ii) If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000,
the promissory note holder irrevocably, unconditionally,
and absolutely agrees to waive and forgo the principal
amount of the promissory note payable by the
Company under the promissory note to the extent
of an amount equal to the difference between the
Updated Valuation and US$25,000,000.

(i)  The due date of the promissory note shall be
extended until 12 December 2019.

715 ¥ 2= B 5
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28. A EH =)

Hi e :

(@)

RZF—+tF+=A+=0 ARFETEELE
#$12,884,615% 7T (48 & $100,500,000/% 7T)
7 22 5 1 & Ui B Starlight Legendk B &
BREREBN D ARZHEEEEKE - 28K
IR AT —\F+=-_A+=H-

R-B—tF+-A=+—HB AELREEHE
BRN ORI ART B BIRFE N ER6% -

RZZB-N\F=ZA-+hB RERBRFHK
HEBRHFB AR 35E

EFREERAEFT LB U GEMY
Starlight Legend®E@H = — N\F+=
A=+ —B 2 HEETHME ([EFHG
B - BUEEMZAEHRAERLE
BREBEARAADEHEEBEREERD
RAe

iy  THEFEHEKF25,000,000% T BlFH
EEFBAEATARE  #& 4 RE2HRA
ERENREAQARIREALZEET
S AR BERASE  HUEERERN
4B £225,000,000% L 2 M 2 8B & 58
FBR o

iy EAZBEZIPARERZE-_ZT—NF
+=—A+=H-

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER
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28. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

(@)

(continueq)

The repayment amount of the promissory note is then
contingent based on the valuation of the Starlight Legend
Group as of 31 December 2018. Therefore, the promissory
note was changed from financial liabilities at amortised cost
to a hybrid instrument which was designated as a financial
liability measured at fair value through profit or loss, with a
gain of HK$5,377,000 at the date of derecognition of the
promissory note measured at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group and the promissory
note holder involved an independent valuer to conduct a
valuation of Starlight Legend Group as at 31 December
2018. Based on the valuation results, a gain of
HK$91,431,000 on change in fair value of the promissory

note was recognised.

The valuation of the Starlight Legend Group was calculated
based on the discounted cash flow method and the key
assumptions included discount rates, growth rates, forecast
revenue and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
the historical box office of the same director and main
cast members, the market comparable data of fims with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of the
market development.

A significant increase in the estimated cash inflow and
the growth rates in isolation would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the promissory note. A
significant decrease in discount rates in isolation would
result in a significant increase in the fair value of the
promissory note.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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28. A EH #)

FiE :

(@)

(%)
(%)

HH ZE IR R B B (E 38 € B4R T Starlight Legend
EEBE T N\FE+-_A=t+—B2HEEMm
Eo AL AR ERCHIZEBERNAHE R
BEEZRAEEARATEMABREZEHEA
BERRE THE RRIEERIZEHEKAGTEN
4L R 5 B B3 8%155,377,000/8 7T ©

RZZE—-NE+-_A=+—8 A&EB KX
BB A — 98 S h E AT ¥ Starlight
Legend&EER =T —N\F+ZA=+—RHZE
E#ETHE REHELR CEREALZEREAT
B % B FE R U 2591,431,00078 TT °

Starlight Legendf B EZAV R R € R &%
REZHBRE (BEBEXR HREXR BARSER
EME)HE -ZEEAERFA—EENBTE
ERErEEE R—FBEEXHMBALEH
BREREHMISERMNTELE-

TitREMEER AR REREREZR
ERMAESIBAR R 2 A FEBRZE N A
AREMER FREBERDESIBALE
Bz P EREEN-
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28. PROMISSORY NOTE (continueq)

Notes: (continueq)

(0)

On 28 December 2018, the Group issued a promissory
note which was measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method with the effective interest rate
at 10% per annum, a principal amount of HK$17,000,000
as part of the consideration for the redemption of Tranche
1 Convertible Bonds (note 29). The promissory note was
unsecured, with a maturity date of 28 January 2019. In
April 2019, the repayment date of the promissory note was
extended to 28 April 2020. In September 2019, the Group
signed an agreement with a share subscriber and the
promissory note holder to settle the promissory note with a
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 and interest amounting
to HK$1,290,000 by the share subscriber.

On 2 January 2019, the Group issued promissory notes
which were measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method with the effective interest
rate at 15% per annum with a total principal amount of
HK$266,989,000 for repaying the Tranche 1 Convertible
Bonds (note 29). The maturity date of the promissory
notes was 28 April 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group repaid the promissory notes
with a principal amount of HK$257,998,000 and interest
amounting to HK$12,634,000.

715 ¥ 2= B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

28. A EH =)

eE: ()

(b)

R-ZE—NFE+_A -+ N\H K&EH
1T R4 B 517,000,000 7T FH=R A
10% M &N 21 RIRAERAM R LIRS
AR ERERE A BRRES
B E (K 5E29) & EiE A K&
AR T -—NF—A=-+/N\H -R=Z
T-NFHA  ARERMNERBHEL
BT -_FTFNMA-_+N\B-R_F
—NFNA TEEH-—FZRHBEAR
AABEFBEAFI —EREABARKRS
R A & E A% 17,000,000 7T K F
B /51,290,000/%8 7T W& H K o

R-ZE—NF—A-H REEBTAS
4478 5266,989,0007 7T F F| E £15%
R EH B HER A E R R X% 8
A E  AEBE el k&S (1
F120) A HBERIBPEHEZEA T -F
FOMA-+NB-BHE-_ZT—hh&F+=
A=Z+—BLEFE KAEBEERSE
257,998,000/ 7T & F1| 8 #312,634,000/%8
TOR) R H B iE -

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

8% coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2018

On 5 November 2015, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with seven independent
investors (“Subscribers”) to conditionally issue the 3
years redeemable convertible bonds of the Company in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000 at
8% coupon rate per annum. On 2 December 2015, the
subscriptions were completed and convertible bonds
of HK$315,000,000 were issued with maturity on 1
December 2018 (the “Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds”) by
the Company to certain Subscribers (‘Bondholders”).
The consideration of the Convertible Bonds was used
as general working capital of the Group and as funds for
future development of the existing business of the Group,
including development of the entertainment and gaming
business in Australia and Cambodia.

The Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and are convertible at the option of
the Bondholders at any time on or after the 90th day of
the date of issuance up to and prior to the maturity date
of 1 December 2018, into new shares of the Company at
a price of HK$5 per share, subject to adjustment on the
occurrence of a dilutive or concentrative event. Upon full
conversion, a total of 63,000,000 new ordinary shares
would be issued by the Company. The Company shall
redeem any Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds which remain
outstanding on the maturity date at its principal amount
together with the outstanding interest.

In November 2018, the repayment date of the remaining
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds was extended to 2 January
2019 with the effective interest rate of approximately 8%.
In January 2019, the Company has settled all remaining
convertible bonds amounting to HK$266.8 million
(including a principal amount of HK$255 million and
interest payable amount of HK$11.8 million) by issuance
of promissory notes a with principal amount of HK$267.0
million which bear interest at a rate of 15% per annum.
And the details of the promissory notes please refer to
note 28.
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REZB-NFEHZ2E-HBRER
&35

NRZE—RE+—ARAR AATEAEZB T
BEE ([RBADTLRERZ A5
AARRBI=FHAERRRKRES NEREHE
/365,000,000 T FE A% - R_FT—H
F+-A-H RBEELEEK  ARRIEM
ETREA ([EHBEAJ)ETT315,000,000
EIR T N\F+-A— BRI AR E
HF([E—HmiESs]) AJRiREFRE
EREREBE —REEES RIERHREERE
AEEREEB2ES  BENBRMNRRIHE
BRIRENIBEER-

E-HAMBEFNBTAE BEFHAA
EENEITRHRFEIORE H 2R EDH
B N\F+-A— Bz EmEH A
BB T ER (N EPEHELR
ETRHE)ABRBARRZHBRD -REHK
g - AR B ETT A 2£63,000,0008% ¥ & &
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ZEEHHERE_T-—AFE—A_-H BF
MEAHHNB% NRZTE—HE—A ARQRTFD
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuea) 20. AP {ESH (2)
8% coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2018 RE-EBE-NFEHZ2E -#HIBHEE
(continued) B2 (&)
The Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds recognised in the RETBH-_ZE—AF+-AZHEHFEVE
consolidated statement of financial position at the date of MRRPER 2 E AT BRRESFTENT

issuance on 2 December 2015 are calculated as follows:

Tranche 1
Convertible Bonds
R BRRES

HK$’000
T T
Nominal value of the convertible BRI BRRESHNEE
bonds issued 315,000
Equity component on initial recognition %77 A A% & %512 ¥ 18 R A9 i 25 26
upon issuance of Convertible Bonds -
Derivative component on initial BT MR ES BB ERNITES D
recognition upon issuance of
Convertible Bonds (147,720)
Liability component at the issuance date 7317 HEiR B &I D 167,280

ERLREEFEHRAT 216
ZE-NFFH
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

8% coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2018

(continued)

The Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds contain a liability
component and a derivative component. The derivative
component is measured at fair value on initial recognition
while any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as a
financial liability. The fair value of the derivative component
of the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds at the issue date was
valued by an independent valuer. The fair value of the
derivative financial liability valued by the independent valuer
is based on valuation technique whose variables include
that uses only data from observable market. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is approximately
31% per annum.

The carrying values of the liability component of
the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds

20, O[R I EHF &)

REZE-NFRHHPzFE-H8NEE
&% (&)

—HABRBRESFESRERD KITERD -
ITEMO RV ERB IR DV ETE MHAF
%Eﬁt%%ﬁ ARITER D 2 ERER/E
ﬂﬁﬁ —HE AT E SR E T BT AER

D2 AV EBRB L ERM G E - BB ERD
ﬁ@ZMiﬁﬂEﬁZ NPEDENEEESR
SUBEMSBEBEZAENEZ ABEFICE
BRHEOREF31%

F—HABMBRESAENDNREERRSH
REVER B F BN R RN

F—H TRKREF

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1 January n—HA—H 266,821 256,562
Interest expense FERZ 168 85,544

Interest paid B F A - (15,285)

Redemption during the year FANEE (266,989) (60,000)
At 31 December (note 27) R+=RA=+—8 (KzF27) - 266,821

Categorised as: DA

Convertible bonds — current liabilities AR ES-REBAE - 266,821

The interest charge of the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying an effective interest
rate of approximately 8% (2018: 31%) to the liability
component.
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

8% coupon Tranche 1 Bonds due 2018

(continued)

A summary of movements in the derivative component of
the Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds is as follow:
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20, O[R I EFHF &)

REE-—NFHPZ2E—HSREE
&% (&)

—HAMmBRESITERYNE B AT

2018

— )\

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2018 R—ZE—N\F—H—H 36,153
Change in fair value of derivative THEEMABEATEE

financial liabilities (86,153)

At 31 December 2018

R=F-N\E+=-A=+—8 -

8% coupon Tranche 2 Bonds due 2022

On 26 April 2019, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with three independent investors
(“bondholders”) to issues the 3 years unsecured
redeemable bonds (the “Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds”)
with conditional conversion rights in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$180,000,000 at an 8% annually
compounded interest rate, which should be payable on
25 April 2022. The subscription was completed on 26
April 2019. The consideration of the Tranche 2 Convertible
Bonds was used to settle the promissory notes.

The Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and were convertible at the option of
the bondholders at any time after the date of issuance up
to and including the date which was five business days
prior to the maturity date of 25 April 2022, into new shares
of the Company at a price of HK$2.50 per share, subject
to adjustments.

RS
&%
R-ZE—hWEWNAZ+AB ARFHE=ZZE
UEREE ([BHEFEADIYURERZ N
BO-FHERRIBELDGES ([F#tag
BREH]) BB EIRGERE A2 BHB
180,000,000/ 7T ' L F 1B & F| E8%5T B - H
FF_Y__EEH +HBEE-3 ﬁ%%lﬁ
ER-ZZE—NAFMONA-+/NB5%K-F _#ta]
S (& %ZTJQ{EEFHBA 7%7%9_%%);%

—oFAHzE BN EE

F_HrmBRESIAVETTAE BEFHAA
EENBTENREEINNE T _FTFN
AZTHARAEZRRA (BERER) ZATH
ERIF R AT AR2.50/8 7T 2 B4 (Al #1738
B)BELBRARRRZHERND -

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

8% coupon Tranche 2 Bonds due 2022

(continued)

The Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds contain a liability
component and a derivative component. The Group
chooses to designate the entire Tranche 2 Convertible
Bonds as financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss at the initial date of recognition. The fair value
of the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds at the issue date was
valued by an independent valuer. The fair value of the
Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds valued by the independent
valuer was based on valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market. The risky rate
used for valuation is 8.16% per annum.

In June 2019, the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds at a
principal amount of HK$180,000,000 were fully converted
into ordinary shares of the Company and the total number
of ordinary shares issued was 72,000,000. On the date
of conversion, the fair value of the Tranche 2 Convertible
Bonds was HK$180,548,000 (Note 30).
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20, O[R I EHF &)

R
&% (&)
%:?ﬁt—ﬁﬁﬁ%f%%@m”%’:%ﬁ D R BTE R e
AEBBIERVGEERB P2 IE ik
BEAEEEARATFEFABEZERHAEE:
RETBHRNE AT BRESF 2 A FERS
M ERMEITEE B EEMETEEZ
FE_WMAIBMBRESZ ATFENEREEESS
BRI HEE 2 HES L AR GEENER
FFEK EH8.16% °

Iz E BN EE

1

ZZE—NFNA A £ % A180,000,000
BIIHE M RRESFERHELRAELRR
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

8% coupon Tranche 2 Bonds due 2022

(continued)

The summary of movements of the Tranche 2 Convertible

Bonds is as follows:

Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds

Notes to Financial Statements
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20, ORI EFHF &)
R-E-_—FEHZE_#BREE

&% (&)

FE_HUBRRESEHRELT

FoM A RREF

2019
—ET-NnE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January Kn—H—H -
Recognition at fair value BWRIEATEFE 180,000
Loss on change in fair value NEEESEE 548
Conversion during the year FN R (180,548)
At 31 December “+=-HA=+—H -
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. Ig&
Shares % 13
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\E
Number of Number of
shares Nominal value shares  Nominal value
K#HEE HE R & E D
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FhREE01IETME B  20,000,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE0IBTHLEER 823,564,799 82,356 673,564,799 67,356

ERXIREREERAT
—E-NEER
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital

30. Ig& (#)

ARRRAZEBHAOT

is as follows:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERTRHEE i &
HK$’000
T T
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 673,564,799 67,356
Shares issued upon conversion of R AR & HF R B 3 TH
convertible bonds (note a) it (Ffska) 72,000,000 7,200
Shares issued upon share R REBREEITHRNG
subscription (note b) (M3Eb) 78,000,000 7,800
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 823,564,799 82,356

Notes:

P& -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Tranche 2
Convertible Bonds were converted to a total of 72,000,000
ordinary shares in the Company. On the date of conversion,
the fair value of the Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds was
HK$180,548,000. HK$7,200,000 was transferred to share
capital and a balance of HK$173,348,000 was transferred
to the share premium account.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
issued 78,000,000 shares at HK$2.5 per share for a total
consideration of HK$195,000,000, which was fully settled.
HK$7,800,000 was transferred to share capital and a
balance of HK$187,200,000 was transferred to the share
premium account.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company on 1
June 2012, an ordinary resolution to propose a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”)
was passed. The 2012 Share Option Scheme was thus
approved and adopted at the general meeting and
subsequent approval was granted by the Stock Exchange.
The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective
for 10 years commencing from the adoption date (i.e., 1
June 2012). The number of shares, which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme and other schemes adopted
by the Group, is not permitted to exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
other schemes adopted by the Group in aggregate is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the adoption date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual
is not permitted to exceed (i) 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue, and (i) HK$5,000,000 in aggregate
value based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in any 12-month period unless such grant
is approved by independent shareholders at a general
meeting.

31.
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R B HEET 2
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FHEBRESS ) 2 ERAZRECEBBE -
——FERETERENRREARS FEMER
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BRETE EEAE R (A 2 — —F XA
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BRETERAEEFERNZ M8 S 2T
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31.

32.

/L= H B —H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Consideration of HK$1 is payable by the grantee on
the acceptance of options granted. An option may be
exercised from the date of acceptance of the offer of such
option to the earlier of the date on which such option
lapses and 10 years from the offer date of that option.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of the grant of the options, and the average of
the closing prices of the shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options.

Since the adoption of the above scheme, no share options
have been granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
up to 31 December 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable to the MPF
Scheme by the Group at specified rates.

The employees of one of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the retirement
benefit scheme contributions were approximately
HK$594,000 (2018: HK$406,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within
the Group are required to allocate a certain portion (not
less than 10%), as determined by their Boards of Directors,
of their profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to
the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

715 ¥ 2= B 5
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33. &
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&l EEEMEARNE0% A LE -

AERBEZ A TANIK  EHRBRER LR
R BUARAEE TR A B EEERE
BIEABTERST BITHRAKIN -

EXTLREKERRAT
TE-NEFR

224



Notes to Financial Statements

By 5 ¥ 2= B 5

31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

33.

34.

RESERVES (continued)

Statutory reserve fund (continuea)

In accordance with the relevant regulations and the
articles of association, a subsidiary registered in the
PRC as a domestic company is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After
the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion of the
Company. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital. However,
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such
usages.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

33.

34.

&

EERES B

RIFABR AR A ERME £ HEMA
WERRMKE AR ARLEAEFMNI10% (&
HKHBAFEMNRAEERE) 25T RMBHE-
REZBENEREEZETBELRNS0%% - &
A B A B 1S 1 ARl — PR A E R
REBEEE R EBEIIEE - R R E
B EMPB®RE ZEATEGRBENEHAELRS
R D RERE25% °

R E K IR 2 I B
2]

FRBERERNFERER ZARENE AR
BEINMT

2019 2018
—T-AF —ZT—N\F
Percentage of equity interest held by EERERAEZREADL
non-controlling interests:
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited 49% 49%
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC 49% 49%
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 4. BEEXERERIER ZIERMHE
WITH MATERIAL NON- A8 (#)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET BT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to FASE T IFIERER 2
non-controlling interests: wmA (EE) -
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited - 477
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC (682) (4,278)
Accumulated balances of IEVERRE R 2 BT A4 -
non-controlling interests:
Jimei Entertainment Cambodia Jimei Entertainment Cambodia
Development Limited Development Limited (45,897) (45,897)
Marshall Holding, LLC Marshall Holding, LLC (847) (71)

erximsnmanas [,
—E-NEER
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

34. BREXFIERER ZIFIXME

A8 (#)

TRINRT LB AR 2 M &R B - B
KESEDEMARREHEAZ S8R

Jimei
Entertainment
Cambodia
Development Marshall
Limited Holding, LLC
2019 —E-NE HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTET
Revenue g 2 - -
Total expenses X 4B 5R - (1,392)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive 4 R &5 18 & & 2 T F5 1B 48 58
loss for the year - (1,392)
Current assets MEEE 2,509 280
Non-current assets EMBEE - =
Current liabilities mEAE (96,175) (2,009)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE = =
Net cash flows used in operating activities &= % FAIR S REFHE - (1,207)
Net cash flows from investing activities REEG RS REFHE - -
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ Bl E %K 2R &R EFHE - 1,307
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R & RIRE SETE B EINF5E - 100
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 34. A EXIEIEIRHERR 2 1 B B B

WITH MATERIAL NON- A8 (#)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq)
Jimei
Entertainment
Cambodia
Development Marshall
Limited Holding, LLC
2018 —E-N\F HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Total other income H A 4258 974 10,439
Total expenses EEE - = (19,188)
Profit/(loss) for the year and total FRRF (BB &
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FR2E U, (FHE) A% 974 (8,749)
Current assets MBEE 2,509 5,981
Non-current assets EMBEE - -
Current liabilities REBAE (96,175) (6,224)
Non-current liabilities JEMEBBE S =
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ && %K 2R &R EFE - 5,644
Net cash flows from investing activities WEXBzHREREFHE - -
Net cash flows used in financing activities FIREIE (5 2R & R E/F 5 - (4,857)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents <& XIR & SEIB HIEINFHE - 787

EXTLREKERRAT
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$691,000 and HK$691,000, respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for plant and
equipment (2018: Nil).

During the year, the redemption of the Tranche
1 Convertible Bonds with a carrying amount of
HK$266,989,000 was settled by the issuance
of promissory notes at the same amount (2018:
HK$17,000,000).

During the year, the conversion of the Tranche
2 Convertible Bonds with a carrying amount of
HK$180,548,000 were fully converted into ordinary
shares (2018: Nil).

During the year, the Group repaid a promissory
note with a principal amount of HK$17,000,000
and interest amount of HK$1,290,000 by a share
subscriber. In September 2019, the Group signed
an agreement between a share subscriber and the
promissory note holder to settle the promissory
note with a principal amount of HK$17,000,000
and interest amount of HK$1,290,000 by the share
subscriber (2018:Nil) (note 28).

During the year, the Group repaid certain borrowings
with a principal amount of HK$44,000,000 and
related interest amounting to HK$1,000,000 by a
share subscriber. In September 2019, the Group
signed an agreement between a share subscriber
and a lender to settle certain borrowings with a
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 and related
interest amounting to HK$1,000,000 by the share
subscriber (2018: Nil).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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(a)

FEFRERZ

FR AEBEEREMRENEHERH
ZIERBEENHERBMNIFR SN
% 7l /691,000 7T &691,000% 7T ( =
T-)\F E)-

F (A B8 [l BR M B £266,989,000/% JT A9
F—RABEBREFDABRTEREANE
BEAFREE (=2 —/)\F 17,000,000
JC) °

F£R - BEHEA180,548,0008 TH % —
AR EAF D AR HE R AT AR
FREH (T N\F ) o

FRN AXEEHBRORBRBABELRSSE
17,000,000 7T & F 2 %41,290,0007% 7T
CERIEE R _T—-HAENLA K&
EE-ZROBBAREKLEEFEA
FilmE LEBEBRORBALGELRSSE
1 7,000,000,% 7T K F B A1,290,0008
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. REHERERME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from b) MEETBMELEEEES
financing activities
2019 BN
Bank
and other Convertible Lease Promissory
borrowings bonds liabilities note
RITR
Hipfees BE: Y HEARE RRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET TFHET TFHET TFHET
At 31 December 2018 ~ RZZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—-H 272,120 266,821 - 17,000
Effect of adoption of RNE B B®E
HKFRS 16 RAEIR o E - - 7,979 -
At 1 January 2019 nZZE-NF—A—H 272,120 266,821 7,979 17,000
Changes from financing RER&REE
cash flows 134,421 180,000 (2,799) (257,998)
New leases WHE - - 691 -
Loss on change in fair AT {EZ#EIE
value - 548 - -
Conversion during the yeari? & A &4 - (180,548) - -
Redemption of convertible LA 317 7# 5 ZiZ 8 [T
bonds by issuance of @R ES
promissory notes - (266,989) - 266,989
Redemption of a —GBRHRBEAED
promissory note by a AR
share subscriber - - - (17,000)
Redemption of certain ~ — BN ABEAE
borrowings by a share ~ ETEE
subscriber (44,000) - - -
Interest expense FMBRAX - 168 441 =
Exchange realignment  [& 5 f§%& (840) - -
At 31 December 2019 RZT—h&F
+=-A=+—H 361,701 - 6,312 9,000

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continueq)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

35. ZEBESRERME »)

b) MEEBFRELEREES (©)

2018 —E-N\F
Bank and other Convertible
borrowings bonds
|RITR
HibgE AR ES
HK$’ 000 HIK$'000
T T T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F—H—H 12,799 256,562
Changes from financing cash flows &l& IR &% & & 259,321 (58,285)
Redemption of convertible bonds  JA 27774 i Z iR & [0
by issuance of a promissory note  AJ & i (& % - (17,000)
Interest expense MEBHAX - 85,544
At 31 December 2018 RZTE-—N\F+ZH=+—H 272,120 266,821

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

statement of cash flows is as follows:

c) HERERHAHE

ARG RERCHEER S RL BR8N
T

2019
B
HK$’000
FHR

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

LR 1,058
mEEEN 2,799

3,857
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed of Innovative Era Limited. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed of Jimei
Entertainment Overseas Development Ltd., Sino Green
Energy International Co., Ltd. and their subsidiaries, Ostar
International Entertainment Pty Ltd. and ZER R HT 205 5

A7 5 ¥ = B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

36. i EM B2

RBE_T—NLF+-_A=+—HIEFE &
£ B B H & Innovative Era Limited - REZE =
Z-N\FT+_A=T—RHILFE AEEEH
& Jimei Entertainment Overseas Development
Ltd.  FEIAZZEEXER AR REENHE R
A]Ostar International Entertainment Pty Ltd.

EE=N YNGR ERRIBNESHBABRAR-
2019 2018
—E-AE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE R 8,312 =
Prepayments, other receivables and TETSRIR - H Ath FE UK G IE K
other assets HmEE 2 =
Cash and bank equivalents Re RRITEEY - 692
Trade payables 2 5 ERNFIE = (296)
Other payables and accruals HtENZKIBERESER - (410)
Loans from non-controlling REKE AR IEERAR R
shareholders of subsidiaries B3 - (1,951)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR R A - 1,294
8,314 (671)
Exchange fluctuation reserve P R B - 2,194
8,314 1,523
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARRES (14) (722)
8,300 801
Satisfied by: BRAT#E:
Cash Be 8,300 801

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH
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36.

37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows:

36. HEMBAST &)

FRALHENBLARAMNBREE KRS EEEB TR
ARDIFTEHN T

2019 2018
“E-AE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Cash consideration ReRE 8,300 801
Cash and bank balances disposed of B HEMIR G MIRITAH - (692)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents & &M E AT 2
in respect of the disposal of RekBeEBEEBFM
subsidiaries 8,300 109

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

37. BARKIE

(@ AEERBEHRBATZEARAE:

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#E T
Contracted, but not provided for: BET4)  BAREME:
Film prepayments ER-AEINE S 60,778 85,364

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continueq)

(b)

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018

The Group leased certain of its various items of
buildings under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for buildings were negotiated for terms
ranging from two to eight years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

A7 5 ¥ = B 5
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37. EXRKIE =2

(b)

RZBE-N\F+_A=+—HZKEH
EEE

AEEREBELEHELZHEARE TET
HE -BFNEABENTFREE/NF-

RZZFE-N\Ft+_A=1t—H XEER
BEAAREEERE CRRRREHEE
NHROBIHBRAOT -

2018
—E-)N\F
HK$’000
FHE T

Within one year —F K

3,808

In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_FEERF (BEEEMTF) 7,422

After five years AFE

109

11,339

ERLREEFEHRAT
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. Elt AR5

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following

outstanding balance below with related parties as at 31 REEZER:

December 2019:

RZE-NF+TZRA=+—HB BIZEUBR
RIGAEAMR BN NREEREH T HEB AT

() Contract asset receivables due from a () EUBEBME2ERENEE

related party

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
A related company - significantly —MHBEB AR —ARF]
influenced by a director of the —REBYHHES
Company BEATE 54,690 =

On 19 April 2019, the Group signed a TV drama
series investment agreement with a subsidiary of
Hangzhou Xindingming Enterprise Management
Consultancy Co., Ltd. On 12 July 2019, the
subsidiary of Hangzhou Xindingming Enterprise

Management Consultancy Co., Ltd was become as a NG

related party of the Group.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(if)

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

The remuneration of the key management of the
Group during the year was as follows:

A7 5 ¥ = B 5
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38. BBt AR5 ()

(i) XEEXTEEEASHM:

FAREETEZEEBASHMAT

2019 2018

—ET-NE —FE-NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#EIT TAIT

Short term employee benefits HEIEEREF 10,132 9,647
Retirement benefit scheme RREFET B R

contributions 18 26

10,150 9,673

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management is determined by the board
of directors having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

EELHEMTIEEREXNEZHMAE
ZERBEAARBARMSBEETE -

EHREERTIETRABHFHMZE—Z
EACE 9N R B

ERLREEFEHRAT
ZE-NFFH

236



237

Notes to Financial Statements
871 15 ¥R R Bid 5

31 December 2019 —_E— L F+-_A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(iii) Amounts due from directors

38. Bt AR5 (@)

(i) BBESFIR

2019 2018
—ET-NE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT T T
Amount due from director — W E EHIE AT
Chau Chit (note 19) (FF5E19) 250 =
Amount due from a director — EKREEREBE-%E
Luo Lei (note 19) (FF3E19) 844 78
1,094 78

The amounts due from directors are unsecured,
interest-free and is repayable on demand.

(iv) Amounts due to a holding company

EWESHELSEER REREEREER-

(ivy BN —EEZERQFFIR

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Amount due to a holding company & —BI4ZE I A &) 3K I8 175,652 =

The amount due to a holding company was interest-
free and repayable in seven workings days on
demand by the holding company. The outstanding
balance has been fully repaid on 8 January 2020.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 0. HEHEITHEMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHER @BRTASESBENETED
instruments as the end of the reporting period as follows: ™
2019 —F-NE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
REBHER A=
ZERMEE
Financial assets SRIEE HK$’000
FET
Trade receivables B 5 W FRIA 257,963
Contract assets EHNEE 144,753
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5T A T8 1~ 3018 ~ H b & U ZE
other receivables and other assets EMmEEZEMEE 96,981
Cash and cash equivalents HehIRe&FHEIER 180,404
680,101

exxiasxmanas |30
—E-NEER
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 30. REMEIPHEMTI A 2

CATEGORY (continueq)
Financial liabilities
at fair value
through
profit or loss
BRTEHAER
MeEmaE
Designated as Financial
such upon liabilities
initial recognition  at amortised cost Total
REHENATE
R RARIET ZEHAE @t
Financial liabilities SRAafRE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL Fax T
Derivative financial liabilities TEemes 15,144 - 15,144
Interest-bearing bank and other ABHIKEMEER
borrowings = 361,701 361,701
Amount due to a holding company B — AR A B3R - 175,652 175,652
Promissory note ERRE - 9,000 9,000
Amounts due to non-controlling eI B A Rl R AR R 300E
shareholders of subsidiaries - 20,900 20,900
Financial liabilities included in trade and T AE 5 R M ERFIB 2
other payables tRAE - 152,787 152,787
15,144 720,040 735,184
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 390. HEHESTHEMT AR &)
CATEGORY (continueq)
2018 —E-NF
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
RE B EE
ZERIEE
Financial assets ERIEE HK$’000
FHET
Trade receivables B 5 W RIA 698
Contract assets BHEE 54,850
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5+ A TB 1 708 « H b & Ug 3078 K
other receivables and other assets HWEEZEMEE 69,413
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEHEIER 26,907
151,868
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RSB A E
ZERERE
Financial liabilities SRAaRE HK$’000
FERT
Interest-bearing bank and FFERITRHEMEE
other borrowings 272,120
Promissory note LR 17,000
Convertible bonds A I 1E 5 266,821
Amounts due to non-controlling FEATBY 8 2 B FEAE AR AR SR 5K T8
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900
Financial liabilities included in A RHMENKEZEHERE
trade and other payables 30,848
607,689

ERXIREREERAT
—E-NEER
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40. R TR AFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s AEEeRIA(REAERATESEESES
financial instruments, other than those with carrying BRI BBEEERAFESRT
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE A¥FE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-nFE —T-\F -B-AE -“T)\F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T THR THE THR

Financial liabilities SRER
Convertible bonds AR ER - 266,821 - 255,000
Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings HERITREMEE 361,701 272,120 366,901 272,640
Promissory note EHEE 9,000 17,000 9,000 17,000
Derivative financial liabilities TEemas 15,144 - 15,144 -
Non-current other payables FEMEN L fth FE T FRIE - 1,552 - 1,381

385,845 557,493 391,045 546,021

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash ERECTHREeRESSEEE 604
and cash equivalents, contract assets, trade receivables, E-ESEWHIE srAEMKE K4 ERK
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables REREMEECSREE FTAEZENEK
and other assets, financial liabilities included in trade H-HMWENREREFERAZcRABE &
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due BT B A B FEVEAR AR SR 5118 R — IR A
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, and an AIFE s AT EEREERE T EHRZE
amount due to a holding company approximate to their TAHREHARHE-

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group'’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2019 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of the derivative financial liability as of 31
December 2019 is related to variable interest rate of
certain film investment loans, which is calculated based
on the discounted cash flow model under the income-
based approach. The key assumptions include discount
rate, forecast revenue and profits tax rate. A significant
increase in the estimated cash inflow and the growth rates
in isolation would result in a significant increase in the
fair value of the derivative financial liability. A significant
decrease in discount rates in isolation would result in
a significant increase in the fair value of the derivative
financial liability.
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40. £ TAENAFERAFEEER

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the derivative financial liability as of
31 December 2018 is related to the derivative part of
Tranche 1 Convertible Bonds, which is determined using
the binomial option pricing model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the expected volatility. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the expected volatility. A

(%)

TEEMBERE_T-\FT-_A=1—H
MAFEESE - RBRESFNITET AR
DER FA_EANREERLET A
FEEMEANERTA BN G AR R
EHIRIE - A FEFEREHINIEA EARRH
R FRER B ARIEMEERITES R T AN
DB KRR AN o T8 R 08 AR R A i B BT

significant increase in the expected volatility would result EERMTEMNAFERRBRL
in a significant increase in the fair value of the derivative
financial instrument. A significant decrease in expected
volatility would result in a significant decrease in the fair

value of the derivative financial instrument.

RZAISEMTRAASEMEETH2EER
REREATEREERNGERTESR-

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

DFEER
TEIFAEESMIAZ AFHEHBER:

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

RAFEHEZAMR:

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2019 R-F|—hE+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

FERANATEEMEZAFENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
RERTS EBEAUERE BEATAHE
WwiE ABIE BABR @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(BE—#&) (B=8&) (B=#8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET T
Derivative financial liabilities PEemAas - - 15,144 15,144
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Notes to Financial Statements

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

41.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2018. During the year, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
convertible bonds, promissory notes, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, derivative financial liabilities
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with a floating
interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using
a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group has
not used any financial instruments to hedge potential
fluctuations in interest rates.
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4. EMTEMAFERAFEERBR

41.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Interest rate risk (continuea)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

41.

MERMEEEERBE 2

R [ B ()

TREIEMEHBERESTIEZBERT

reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other AEERAT R A EF RSB E S B) 2 B
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax: ER
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points  profit before tax
E-3 1 B Bt wi i F1)
Wi, (iBd) Wi, (RY)
HK$’000
FTHET
2019 —E—-NnE
RMB AR 100 186
United States dollar ETT 100 (634)
RMB AR (100) (186)
United States dollar ETT (100) 634
2018 —T-N\F
United States dollar ETT 100 2
Hong Kong dollar AT 100 56
United States dollar ETT (100) 2
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (56)
Foreign currency risk S | B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 100% (2018:100%) of the Group’s sales
were denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. MBEREEBERBER &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SRS (2)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TREHNEMBEHEMEHERTEZBERT
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible AEERBANEN (REEXEERBEATE
change in the RMB and USD exchange rate, with all other EHMB)ERNBREHABERFARERET
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax RSB e B) 2 B -
(due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and
liabilities).
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
USD/RMB (decrease) in
rate % profit before tax
En/ AR B B w i F1
W, (L) wam, (i)
&%
HK$’000
FHET
2019 —T-hE
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT ETEE
against the USD 1 177
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fisi 7 7o A E T AHAE
against the USD (1) (177)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens WATHARERE
against the RMB 1 (856)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT R ARBHE
against the RMB (1) 856

ERLREEFEHRAT 246
ZE-NFFH
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

M. BBEEBEEEHERBER &)

Foreign currency risk (continued) SN RS (2)
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
USD/RMB (decrease) in
rate % loss before tax
EL/ AR R B A S 1B
#wm, CRd) #m, Ofd)
b &%
HK$'000
T T
2018 —E-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens i BT ETEE
against the USD 1 210
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fisi 7 7T A E T AHAE
against the USD (1) (210)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens WATHARERE
against the RMB 1 (478)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREHE
against the RMB (1) 478
Credit risk =& R

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are

monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure TEKR

to bad debts is not significant.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. UERBREEEERBR &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Credit risk (continued) EERkE 2
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R B Bz i O R F K P iE e R
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRETINTZA=T—"HBNEEEZRER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, AEBEEBRRNEAEERRMKO  FEX
which is mainly based on past due information unless RBTBERER (RIFFEHMEFTTIUERL
other information is available without undue cost or effort, R Z N EB R E R AR F R E K ER
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. DEME -2 EEAZEEMEENR
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for HBEAFREEERR-

financial assets and the exposure to credit risk.

As at 31 December 2019 NR=TF—-h&E+=A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 A E#
EEEE FRYEESEEEE
Simplified
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—ME EEE EERE Bt HE azt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET FTHET FHET FET
Contract assets” AHEE - - - 146,217 146,217
Trade receivables* g S W R - - - 267,201 267,201
Cash and cash equivalents RERFACEEESR
- Not yet past due — AR A 180,404 - - - 180,404
Financial assets included AR FE
in prepayments, other H MR R
receivables and other assets  HHMAEMEREE
- Normal** -EE~ 95,140 - - - 95,140
- Doubtful™ — A & - - 136,391 - 136,391
274,544 - 136,391 413,418 825,353

erxiagsmanas |50
—E-NEER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk (continuea)
As at 31 December 2018

M. BBEEBEEEHERBER &)

FEERK #)
W-E—N\E+=-A=+—~

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 ATE
FEBR FESRBHEESE
Simplified
Staget Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ERE E-RE E=RB B *E @Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT BT AT FHET FHET
Contract assets* BHBE" - = = 55,404 55,404
Trade receivables* 2 W R - - = 7,331 7,331
Cash and cash equivalents ReLFeEEER
- Not yet past due — AR 26,907 - - - 26,907
Financial assets included BUNEGEE:E
in prepayments, other H IR R
receivables and HhBENSREE
other assets
- Normal** -EE~ 67,574 - - - 67,574
- Doubtful™ — A g - - 136,434 - 136,434
94,481 - 136,434 62,735 293,650

ok

For trade receivables and contract assets which the Group

applies simplified approach lifetime ECL, information based

on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 18 and 20 the

financial statements, respectively.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, other receivables and other assets is

considered to be “normal” when they are not past due

and there is no information indicating that the financial

assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 64% (2018: 99 %) and
99% (2018: 100%) of the Group’s trade receivable
and contract assets were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively,
within the media and culture segment.

Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains

sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of committed facilities from banks, convertible
bonds, promissory notes and other interest-bearing loans
to meet its commitments over the foreseeable future in
accordance with its strategic plan.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.
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R|EME R ARAEREEE N XXEn 7R
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. AEERREEEERBE &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REBELER &)

REAORBEANT AERERRERARZE
REEIHBERILT

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
PR—% —-ERE ik
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
2019 —B-nE
Interest-bearing bank and FERITREMEE
other borrowings 211,827 184,917 396,744
Amount due to a holding company [ — R A B F0A 175,652 - 175,652
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,799 6,980 9,779
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 152,787 - 152,787
Amounts due to non-controlling JERT B B A Rl e AR R 3R 5B
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900 - 20,900
Derivative financial liabilities TEemBE 15,144 ~ 15,144
Promissory notes AR ER 9,000 - 9,000
588,109 191,897 780,006
2018 —E-N\E
Interest-bearing bank and FERAREMEE
other borrowings 165,282 126,092 291,374
Trade and other payables B REMENRE 29,296 1,552 30,848
Amounts due to non-controlling ERENGERE G &S
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900 - 20,900
Convertible bonds #RES 279,277 - 279,277
Promissory notes ESES 17,545 = 17,545
512,300 127,644 639,944
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Tranche 2 Convertible Bonds at a principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 were fully converted into ordinary
shares of the Company and the total number of ordinary
shares issued was 72,000,000. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company issued 78,000,000
shares at HK$2.5 per share for a total consideration of
HK$195,000,000. The Group made no change to its
capital structure during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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M. UBEGEBEHERBEK 2
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REQEZ 8N ARBBRIARLE
XHHEBEEREREAREEE-

AEBBREEEBRAZEHNBBEE 2R
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. AEERREEEERBE &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds, promissory notes, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, trade payables

BEXEE (&)

rEBRAEARR

Ho & (AMERSFERR AR
HEEANEBFE)EREAN-BHFEER
EAERITREMES T#“H%E%W%PL%‘%
% EATHT B 2 R FFEBRRR R
%’XIE&ﬁMmeIE&}*aJr%FH FH*F&%T@

B EN

and other payables and accruals, an amount due to a HQ AIFIARIR & &ﬁ‘i\ cBARBIE
holding company less cash and cash equivalents. Capital NEEB ANELER - R i&% N O N
includes equity attributable to owners of the parent. The %1ftt$§DT :
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NE —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMEER
borrowings 361,701 272,120
An amount due to a holding company  JEff — 12 % KIE 175,652 =
Convertible bonds AR & 25 - 266,821
Promissory notes R 9,000 17,000
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1~ BT B8 & R] IR AR AR R R IE
shareholders of subsidiaries 20,900 20,900
Trade payables =87 ANk e 3,162 3,219
Other payables and accruals HAb S5 IE&FE FTER 149,625 26,077
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoREREEFEEL (180,404) (26,907)
Net debt B RE 539,636 579,230
Equity attributable to owners of NEHER NG
the parent 356,296 (117,290)
Capital and net debt BEARMES FE 895,932 461,940
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 60% 125%
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42. KA HABIRRAETR

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

BEREHR BFRARRRZHBRRARZE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: e N
2019 2018
—E-nE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI WS KRR 80 123
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 58,736 58,736
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 58,816 58,859
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Other receivables H{th e W 3k IR 624 35,554
Film prepayments B ENKIE 50,649 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B B N B FRIE 93,245 16,027
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITES 16,510 3,247
Total current assets MENVEERRRE 161,028 54,828
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEra &
Other payables Hih e~ 5RIB 3,093 2,449
Contract liabilities BHEE 25,185 =
Promissory notes A ER 9,000 17,000
Convertible bonds AR E 5 - 266,821
Other borrowings HEMEE 11,400 -
Total current liabilities mEN B EeRE 48,678 286,270
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) F#RB&E(&8fE) 112,350 (231,442
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERMBBE
LIABILITIES 171,166 (172,583)

EXTLREKERRAT
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42. K ATRBFRAR @)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T F#E T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Total non-current liabilities EmBEERE - =
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)F8 171,166 (172,583)
Equity/deficiency in assets xS EEEA
Share capital A& 7 82,356 67,356
Reserves (note) s (B EE) 88,810 (239,939)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) Wz, (BEEA) 258 171,166 (172,583)
Chau Chit Hung Ching Fung
AsE it s g
Director Director
EFE EZE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42. X AT MBIRRE =)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note: BieE
A summary of the Company’s reserves for the year ended 31 BHE-Z-NF+A=T—HILFE X2 FH@
December 2019 is as follows: T -
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
N e
B 1n s (B i REtEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NEF
—RA—B#&#& 196,230 1,564 (437,733) (239,939)

Loss and total comprehensive 4 A& 18 I
loss for the year ZHEBRAE - - (31,799) (31,799)

Total comprehensive income  F A2 W A5
for the year - - (31,799) (31,799)

Shares issued upon conversion 7 AJ #1 % & 5 8 kS

of convertible bonds BITR M 173,348 - - 173,348
Shares issued upon share PRI 17 SR EE
subscription Bk M 187,200 = = 187,200
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=A=+— 556,778 1,564 (469,532) 88,810

erximgrmanas [
—E-NEER



42. XATMBRRAR @)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: (continued) MicE: (&)
A summary of the Company’s reserves for the year ended 31 BEZZT-N\F+A=+—HIFE TARKNHE
December 2018 is as follows: BT
Capital Investment
Share redemption reserve Convertible  Accumulated
premium reserve revaluation  bonds reserve losses Total
RAER RESMH AR
R 17 R (E f#E f#fE EHEE 2EEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET AT TET
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t5F

+-A=+-8 196,230 1564 1,804 - (408,003) (208,405)

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RRBE B RE R

FORv T E - - (1,804) - 1,804 =
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-N\F
—A—B (BE5)) 196,230 1,564 . - (404,199)  (206,405)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERK
loss for the year FHEBELESE - - - - (33,534) (33,534)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+-8 196,230 1,564 - - (437,733) (239,939)
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44,

Notes to Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 20 February 2020, the Company’s board of directors
decided to cease its business in the entertainment and
gaming segment taken account of, among other factors,
absence of revenue generated for over one year, the
minimal assets kept and the hardship in keeping its
operations. As at 31 December 2019, there were no
long-term assets or liabilities directly associated with the
entertainment and gaming business segment.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2019, an
outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
pandemic may impact the Group’s business in the coming
year.

The Group will continue to monitor the development of
COVID-19 situation closely and assess its impacts on the
financial position and operating results of the Group. Up to
the date of this report, the assessment is still in progress.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 14 May
2020.

43.

44,

715 ¥ 2= B 5

31 December 2019 —E— N F+=-_A=+—H

REVEEREN

RZBE_EF_A-+H &KEE(EPEHE)
B—FREENRT BHEEEE D RHER
BE AQNREEGRERIRENBY S
MEBE-RZZT—NAF+=ZA=+—8 #&
MRS PEYES A ERAENRPEESK
BE-

BE_ZT—NWFt+-_A=+—HILFEE =
T-NFEMRBESHEMRE ([COVID-19]) KiR1T
FRBREN SV EAEBERFNER-

7 4 B 5 18 4 3 4 B E COVID-1980 B B SRR
SELES BN DTSN Y $ EL o
S BEARE AW FEDERTP -

HEEESMBRR

REEMBERRIREZTEN T _ZTFAHA
T B R AT

ER LB EREHRAT
—E-NEER
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Financial Summary

AIFSRR R

RESULTS

E 35

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=1+—-HILEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-hF ZE—XF ZE—+tF ZE-N\F ZE-iF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FAET THET FHET
Revenue (including continuing and Wz (B HEHE R
discontinued operations) RIEEEET) 194,857 195,562 39,958 73,485 327,065
Profit (loss) before taxation B AR N (B1E) (23,026) (50,563) (297,979) (55,518) 148,097
Income tax (expense) credit e (AX)E R (961) (331) = = (50,603)
Profit (loss) for the year FERA (BE) (23,987) (50,894) (297,979) (55,518) 97,494
attributable to owners of /NI FE DNl
the Company 8,734 (39,766) (294,439 (49,606) 98,181
attributable to non-controlling IR EG
interests (32,721) (11,128) (3,540) (5,912) (687)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
®R+=-A=+-—-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE2-RF ZE—RE ZZ—+F ZZ-NFE ZT-I%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBT FET FHET TFET THET
Total assets BEE 553,785 381,652 342,432 446,453 1,174,583
Total liabilities was (435,537)  (317,147)  (452,877)  (609,805)  (865,031)
118,248 64,505 (110,445  (163,352) 309,552
Equity ey
attributable to owners of RNFHEE ARG
the Company 150,930 108,370 (68,990) (117,290) 356,296
attributable to non-controlling R EG
interests (32,682) (43,865) (41,455) (46,062) (46,744)
Total @zt 118,248 64,505 (110,445  (163,352) 309,552
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